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FBR’s cutting edge dynamically stabilised construction robots
have brought the speed and precision of indoor robotics into
outdoor, uncontrolled environments for the first time.

The Hadrian X® is the world’s most
advanced construction robot, offering
significant improvements in speed,
safety, accuracy, waste and ultimately
cost overtraditional block construction
methods. The Hadrian X® takes the
precision and efficiency of indoor
robotics into outdoor, uncontrolled
environments for the first time thanks
to Dynamic Stabilisation Technology™,
or DST®.

DST® is a system for measuring
dynamic interference and
movement in real-time and
counteracting this movement
to maintain stability and deliver
unprecedented precisionin variable
conditions. It is the technology
that allows the Hadrian X® to
place product with such precision
through a 32-metre boom.

FBRis commercialising products for the construction sector
together with DST® enabled solutions for other industries.

Customers can order erected block
walls on site with clear visibility of
cost and delivery date through a
commercial offering called Wall as a
Service®. This allows builders access
to the benefits of robotic construction
such as improvements in speed,
accuracy, safety and waste, without
having to build robotics capability into
their businesses.



Fourth house
in Wellard

portfolio sold

Next-Generation
Hadrian X® completes
FAT ahead of US
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of $8.7 million

Work completed Hadrian X®
on 16-townhouse commences
development construction on
8-townhouse
development
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FBR
commences
trading on US
OTCQB market

Next-Generation
Hadrian X®
departs Australia
bound for Florida

FBRto
utilise Liebherr
facilities in US

FBR executes binding
US agreement

with CRH Ventures
Americas
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Chairman’s
Review

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, it is
my pleasure to present to you
FBR's Annual Report for the
2024 financial year.

In my letter to you last year, | outlined that the
relevance of our technology was greater than it
had ever been, due to the increasing demand for
homes around the world. This has led to significant
inbound interest in our technology from investors,
potential customers and everyday people from
across the globe. These interested parties share
ourvisionforthe future ofthe constructionindustry
and recognise the potential of our technology to
make an impact in the construction industry.

We have continued to generate momentum
throughout the year, having entered into what is
potentially a transformational partnership with
CRH Ventures to execute our market entry into the
United States. Having already completed a number
of homes in our Demonstration Program with CRH
Ventures, we are approaching an exciting point in
our commercialisation activities.

FBR LIMITED
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It would not be possible to get to where we
are today without the unwavering focus and
concerted efforts of our employees, and the
leadership of our management team.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of FBR
Limited, | thank you for your continued support
of our Company.

Richard Grellman
Non-Executive Chairman
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Building on our technical
achievements last vyear,
FBR has continued to make
progress on many fronts.

Since laying the first blocks with our next-
generation Hadrian X, we have made significant
improvements to its speed and reliability, achieving
lay rates exceeding 340 blocks per hour, which
bodes particularly well for the economics of our
Wall as a Service® commercial model.

On the commercial front, in January of this
year we announced the signing of a suite of
agreements with CRH Ventures, intended to result
inthe formation of a Wall as a Service® joint venture
between FBR and CRH Ventures, an initial 20-unit
purchase order for Hadrian X® robots and a US$40
million facility to allow the joint venture to purchase
the Hadrian X® robots from FBR.

We are seeking to replicate this Wall as a Service®
business model in other key markets around
the world, knowing that our technology has the
potential to make a significant impact in each
of the markets that it operates in. This not only
provides FBR with a significant moat, but allows
FBR to attract global, industry-leading companies
to partner with.

FBR continues to engage with stakeholders,
ranging from prospective Wall as a Service
partners, investors, government agencies both
domestic and abroad, and prospective customers.
It is likely that our business will undergo significant
change over the coming years, as we seek to
scale our capability to fit the impending demand
for our technology. The further we progress on
our journey, the more confidence | have that the

Managing
Director & CEO'S
Review

Dear fellow Shareholders,

unique technology that FBR possesses,
and the business model that we have, has
the potential to make a significant positive
impact to construction globally.

| want to take this opportunity to thank
Greg Smith and Grant Anderson for their
contributions to FBR as they stepped down
from the Board during the year, and wish
them the very best in their endeavours. |
would like to welcome to the Board Glenn
Cooper and Shannon Robinson, who were
appointed to the Board during the year.

| wish to thank Richard Grellman, our
Chairman, and the rest of the Board of
Directors for their guidance and support
over the period. We are in a period of exciting
opportunities for the Company and having a
Board with a diverse wealth of experience is
invaluable.

Lastly, our Shareholders, thank you for
continuing to support our Company as we
progress toward commercialisation. The
future for us is bright and | look forward to
sharing developments with you as they
unfold.

Mike Pivac
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

FBR LIMITED
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FBR Board
and Executive Team

l}:hard Grellman

Non-Executive Chairman

Mike Pivac
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Mark Pivac
Executive Director &

Chief Technical Officer

Nancy Milne
Non-Executive Director

Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

@

Richard spent 32 years with accounting firm
KPMG. He was a partner from 1982 to 2000, a
member of KPMG's National Board from 1995
to 1997 and a National Executive from 1997
to 2000. In 2007, Richard was appointed a
member of the Order of Australia for service
to the community, particularly through
leadership roles with Mission Australia and
fundraising with Variety, The Children’s Charity,

Mike spent 20 years in the aviation sector
as an Airborne Mission Coordinator with
Australian Border Protection and Search and
Rescue, specialising in Electronic Detection
Systems and strategic and tactical mission
planning, working closely with Australian
and international government and military
agencies.

Mark is the primary inventor of FBR's
automated bricklaying technology. He is an
aeronautical and mechanical engineer with
over 32 years experience working on the
development of high-technology equipment
ranging from lightweight aircraft to heavy off-
road equipment.

He has 27 years’ experience working with

Nancy has extensive business experience as a
non-executive director and lawyer specialising
in insurance, corporate governance, risk
management and commercial dispute
resolution. She was a partner at Clayton Utz
from 1997 to 2003 and a consultant until 2012
She was awarded the Order of Australia medal
in 2008 for services to the legal sector and to
the community.

FBR LIMITED
2024 ANNUAL REPORT

and to the finance and insurance sectors.

Richard is a Non-Executive Director of
Simonds Group Ltd, a Lead Independent
Director of The Salvation Army Australia and
a Board Member of Excelsia College.

He also owned and operated businesses in
the retail, hospitality and transport sectors
and has been key to developing FBR's
technology, business plan and machine
development strategy. He has forged
relationships  with investors, builders,
product suppliers and future customers
pivotal to bringing the Hadrian X® to life.

pro/engineer 3D CAD software as well as
high-level mathematics, including matrix
mathematics, robot transformations and
vector mathematics for machine motion.
Mark has also worked extensively with
design, commissioning and fault finding on
servo controlled motion systems achieving
very high dynamic performance.

Nancy is currently chair of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board
and Deputy Chair of the State Insurance
Regulatory Authority. Nancy was previously
a Director of ALE Property Group Limited,
Australand Property Group and Novion
Property Group. In addition to her role as
Non-Executive Director, Nancy chairs FBR’s
Remuneration sub-committee.



Shannon Robinson
Non-Executive Director

q;lgnlryooper

Non-Executive Director

Rowan Caren

Chief Financial Officer
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Kiel Chivers
Chief Operating Officer

Jonathan Lawe Davies

General Counsel

Shannon is an experienced company director
and a former corporate lawyer with 20 years
of corporate experience. She is a graduate
member of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors (AICD) and a fellow of the
Governance Institute of Australia (GIA).

Glenn has an engineering, sales and business
operations background with over 25 years'
experience as a senior executive in the
construction, manufacturing and quarrying
industries working with and for global OEMs
such as Liebherr, Sandvik and Hitachi. He is
experienced across all business functions in
the construction equipmentindustryincluding
sales, commercialisation and operational
management.

Rowan Caren is a chartered accountant and
has extensive experience as a Company
Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of ASX
listed companies predominantly in the mining
and industrial sectors, with operations in
Australia and overseas.

Kiel has 14 years' experience in commercial,
finance and marketing roles and has been
responsible for financial analysis and planning
for new operating entities and major projects
both domestically and internationally. Kiel has
extensive experience in marketing, investor
relations and communications and has
worked closely with executives and boards
across a wide range of industries.

Jonathan is a specialist IP lawyer with more
than 20 years' experience. His extensive
experience includes senior IP roles in top law
firms in Australia and the UK, in-house counsel
roles at a global corporation and board-level
roles in a commercial patent monetisation
business.

Shannon has been a director of several ASX
listed technology companies, including as
Chair of FBR Limited from 2015 to 2018,
and is currently a Non-Executive Director of
Yojee Limited (ASX:YOJ).

Glenn has held previous (and current
directorships and senior executive roles at
regional and global levels for major global
OEMSs and has recently been group CEO of
ASX listed company, Bisalloy Steel Group
Limited (ASX:BIS). Glenn is a graduate
member of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors (AICD) and holds a
diploma in Mechanical Engineering.

Rowan holds a Bachelor of Commerce
(Accounting) from the University of Western
Australia and is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia.

Kiel holds a Bachelor of Commerce with
a double major in Finance and Property
from Curtin University, a Bachelor of Laws
from Murdoch University and a Diploma of
Investor Relations from the Australasian
Investor Relations Association.

He has managed numerous successful
high-value patent litigations in the US,
Europe and Australia, international
inlicensing and out-licensing projects,
IP sales and acquisitions and created
bespoke holistic IP strategies across a broad
range of hardware and software-based
technologies.

FBR LIMITED
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Hadrian X®

Operations
Update

Wellard

FBR's Wellard portfolio initially comprised of five
undeveloped blocks of land that were purchased by
FBR and developed utilising its Hadrian X® robot with
a selection of Perth builders. Of the five homes built
in Wellard, four have been sold, and the final home is
awaiting finishing trades before reaching completion, at
which time it will be sold.

Willagee

FBR completed robotic construction activities at the
Willagee Project in March 2024. The build, located in the
Perth suburb of Willagee, comprised building the walls
for 16 two-storey townhouses, for Inspired Homes, a
large builder of both residential and multi-unit dwellings,
and Satterley, who are one of Australia’s largest land
developers, on one of their premier developments in the
state.

Located in two groups across the development, the
northern and southern sides each contain eight two-
storey units foratotal of 16 units. The previous generation
Hadrian X® is robotically constructing the load bearing
walls and internal partition walls.

Given the complexity of the project, which included a
number of first-time accomplishments for FBR such as
common party walls between each townhouse, a triple-
leaf cavity wall system, acoustic brick ties, as well as steel
reinforcements and fireproofing, FBR adopted a staged
approach, completing all the first storey courses before
the formation and installation of the second storey slabs
and then completing the second storey walls, including
up to a record height of 9.2 metres. The townhouses are
located on a rising site with each townhouse standing
on a different level. This meant that the Hadrian X® was
situated on the adjacent block building below ground
level, moving to continue work on the opposite side once
a side is complete, enabling the next concrete slab to be
poured.

S fenj FBR LIMITED
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Construction of the project utilised almost 70,000
concrete masonry units (CMUs) equating to over
350,000 standard brick equivalents, making up wall area
of 6 km?.

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

Layout: 16 Double Storey Townhouses (3
Bedroom, 2 Bathroom, Double
Garage)
Wall Area: 5,951 sgm
Block Type: CMU (Concrete Masonry Unit)
Block Size: 390mm x 230mm x 90mm
Block Laid: 69,230 CMUs (Approx. 350,000
SBEs)
Block Wastage: | < 0.1%
) ]
= Wall Type: Single, Double & Triple Leaf Cavity
(- walls
O status Walls Complete (March 2024)

The St James Project comprises eight two-storey
townhouses for developer Riculallo Pty Ltd, in the Perth
=== suburb of St James. FBR mobilised to site in January
C62024 and promptly completed the first four stages,
ready for the second storey slabs to be poured. Work
on the second storey walls began once the slabs were
8 poured and ready.

S— TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

Layout: 8 Double Storey Townhouses (3

Q Bedroom, 2 Bathroom, Double
Garage)

Wall Area 2,732 sgm

(So Far):

Block Type: CMU (Concrete Masonry Unit)

Block Size: 390mm x 230mm x 90mm

Block Laid 32,878 CMUs

(So Farn): (Approx. 154,390 SBEs)

Block Wastage: | < 0.1%

Wall Type: Single & Double Leaf Cavity Wall

Status: In-Progress

2024 ANNUAL REPORT
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Next-Generation
Hadrian X®

The next-generation Hadrian X®
is the latest iteration of FBR's
bricklaying construction robot.

Modular design

The next-generation Hadrian X® is designed with
distributed-control architecture, leading to a highly
reliable system which allows for individual modules to
be customised, repaired and swapped efficiently while
in the field.

This modular architecture also allows for distributed
manufacture of modules with centralised assembly,
facilitating scale up for new international markets.

Most ancillary equipment on the Hadrian X® is self-
contained, greatly improving deployment efficiency.
Assembly of the second next-generation Hadrian
X®is nearing completion. Significant demand for the
Hadrian X®technology in the U.S. has prompted FBR to
commence procurementand manufacture forfourU.S -
spec Hadrian X® units to introduce Wall as a Service® to
the U.S,, our largest target market.

FBR LIMITED
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Lengthened boomarm

The lengthened 32-metre telescopic boom arm
provides further reach than its predecessor, enabling
construction of walls three storeys high from the
roadside as well as the ability to lay blocks within 50mm
of existing walls.

Shuttle Block Delivery System

The Shuttle Block Delivery Systemis designed
to lay existing commercially available blocks
as well as have the ability to lay blocks not
yet available on the market, including large
blocks measuring up to 600mm x 400mm x
300mm and weighing up to 45kg.

The next-generation Hadrian X® has been
designed to be able to lay at speeds of up to
500 blocks per hour and has the potential to
complete both the external and internal walls
of a standard double-brick house in a single
day.

FBRLIMITED . '| '|
2024 ANNUAL REPORT
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At the beginning of the 2024 calendar year, FBR announced
thatit had executed a binding suite of option agreements with
CRH Ventures Americas, Inc. (CRH Ventures”), a subsidiary of
CRH plc (‘CRH), one of the largest concrete block suppliers
in the United States. Affiliates of CRH Ventures and FBR
executed a Demonstration Program agreement to jointly
construct up to 10 houses in the United States with FBR's
Hadrian X® construction robot, while FBR has granted CRH
Ventures an exclusive Option to enter into an exclusive joint
venture forthe supply of Wall as a Service® in the United States
following the successful achievement of the milestones of
the Demonstration Program. Under the agreement, FBR has
provided one Hadrian X® built to Australian specifications
to complete the demonstration builds. Under the Option
agreement, CRH Ventures has purchased an Option for
further collaboration with FBR pending the success of the
Demonstration Program aimed at constructing up to 10
houses in Florida.

] 2 @- FBR LIMITED
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Upon execution of the Demonstration Program and Option
Agreements, 10% of the USS$2.0 million Option fee was paid;
40% was subsequently paid upon completion of a Factory
Acceptance Test on 20 February 2024; and 30% was paid
upon completion of the United States Site Acceptance Test
which FBR announced subsequent to the end of the period
on 14 August 2024.

The remaining 20% will be payable immediately upon the
completion of the Demonstration Program. Milestone
payments are non-refundable. Once the Option is exercised,
the joint venture will immediately place an order for a further
20 Hadrian X® construction robots, to be funded through a
USS40 million loan facility provided to the joint venture by
CRH Americas.
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Exclusive U.S. Demonstration
Program & JV Option

CRH Ventures, a subsidiary of CRH plc (NYSE:CRH,

USS$55bn market cap).

CRH plc generates multi-billion-dollar revenues,
demonstrating a strong customer base and global market
footprint.

A market leading supplier of building materials with
established operations globally including in the U.S. and
Europe, and further expansion into Australia through
recently completed $2.1bn acquisition of Adbri Ltd.

A US. JV providing WaaS® will generate new revenue
streams and differentiated products relative to existing

i

business model;
Revenue from delivery of erected wall (WaaS®),
not just manufacture of blocks.
Delivery of internal masonry walls, competing
strongly with timber.
Competitive advantage and efficiency gains
through use of automation and robotics.
Delivering customers real-time advantages and
cost savings.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT (9 13



Reporting

FBR confirms there were no improvement Our commitment to the safety and health of FBR
employees, contractors, visitors, and members of

Safety, Health,

Environment and Quality

For personal use only

14

notices, prohibition notices or fines received
from any Australian regulatory body within the  the public is unwavering.

12 months to 30 June 2024.

KPI

INDICATOR

FBR REPORTING PERIOD

No Improvement Notices

No Improvement Notices

No Prohibition Notices

No Prohibition Notices

No Fines from Regularory Body

No Fines from Regularory Body

No Lost Time Injuries

1 Lost Time Injury, full recovery

No Medical Treatment Injuries

No Medical Treatment Injuries

FBR's performance against targets in FY 23/24 is summarised in Table 1 below:

KPI

INDICATOR

FBR REPORTING PERIOD

No work-related fatality or
permanent injury

No work-related fatality, permanent injury

Injuries decrease, and we have
no repeat incidents

We have had 7 injuries during this reporting
period last period was 49

Reporting for Hazards and
Improvements

Awareness of reporting requirements
improved, number of hazards reported down
to 115 from 174 in pcp

No Workers Compensation claims

No workers compensation claims

Training and qualifications are
current

Training and qualifications are current

Decrease in asset damage

We have had a decrease in asset damage
from 37 to 18

Workplace health monitoring

Medical baselines, fumes and noise
monitored

Visible leadership and personal
accountability for SHEQ activities

at all levels of the business

Leaders are in the field. Positive culture
change, increase in safe observation

Table 1: Health & Safety performance against targets in FY24.

@ FBR LIMITED
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SHEQ Pillars to Success and Performance «  Managers are active to ensure every task has a risk

h . lared hto S q assessment complete.
FBR has a four-pillared approach to SHEQ success an « Incident & hazard taxonomies contribute to our
performance: .
strategies.
PROCEDURES FORIMPROVEMENT - Business risks are managed online and reviewed
Employees are educated and made aware of FBR safety with stakeholders on Safety Champion.
standards, so expectations are clear and adherence is
monitored.

- Employees are provided with the tools to adhere
to department procedures and processes.

+  Continue to share “good safety”, an appreciative
safety model.

« Identify and share learning opportunities of
where safety has been improved.

+ Fatality Prevention Safety concepts are
introduced, and checklists are available on Safety
Champion.

only

(1) STANDARDS AND EXPECTATIONS

Leaders set the standard from a Safety and Pecple Value
3 perspective.

« Leaders are given the procedures and tools to
lead their people.

+  Team members are trained in investigation
techniques, ie. supervisors and managers to
understand root causes of risks.

Hadrian operators and construction team
members are qualified and competent to the
highest standard.

«  Training manuals are provided for all tasks and
equipment, and our people are required to
complete verification of competence.

or personal

LL CONTRACTOR MANAGEMENT IS EMBEDDED
Continue the journey with contractors and ensure they meet
SHEQ requirements and guide them as required.

+  Ourcontractor management provides for a safety
win for both Contractors and FBR.

+  Contractors are a part of FBR “One Team”. They
are inducted and audited to ensure adherence to
FBR's standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND BUSINESS
RISKMANAGEMENT

Corporate Governance and Business Risk Management
reinvigorated and managed in a simple system.

«  Continue to rigorously audit the workplace to
ensure adherence to safety standards.

FBR LIMITED
2024 ANNUAL REPORT @



Our
People

Purpose &

Values

We are pioneers

We thrive on pushing
the boundaries and
achieving the impossible.

We are innovators and
recognise there is no
success without failure.

16

Weare natural explorers.

+  We are inquisitive and
adventurous - the way
things are isn't the way
things have to be.

frem; FBRLIMITED
B8} 2024 ANNUAL REPORT

—

=

T
;
ot

et

We are one team

«  We always make it our number one
priority to make sure everyone goes
home safely.

We understand we all have arole to
play and as a team we are stronger.

We are committed and passionate.

We always look out for each other.

We act with integrity

+  We arent afraid to admit our
mistakes & work collaboratively on
solutions.

We are open and candid with each
other.

We are authentic, humble and
honest.

We treat everyone equally.



We believe people are the foundation of any organisation’s success, the business is paramount, along with ensuring we
including our own. FBR's success has been built upon the quality of retain and develop our team within FBR.
staff that we employ and their ability to meet expectations. .

United States Deployment

Our dedicated recruitment team have the expertise in recruiting In June 2024, FBR deployed a team to the United
qualified professional talent despite various skill shortages across States to project manage the first Demonstration
the country. As our employment market continues to be competitive Programwith CRH Venturesincludingthe temporary
our recruitment team continuously improve recruitment methods to engagement of US personnel for construction
ensure we are positioned to attract the right talent for FBR including
the development of innovative sourcing techniques which we utilise in
conjunction with more traditional recruitment processes. Retention

activities.

As of the 30 June 2024, FBR employs 97 people
withinthe business. On average the years of services
range between 2to 7 years.

Developing our people and achieving individual and team results for

Our high levels of retention within FBR are achieve

through successful strategies including:

L EE] +  Empowering staff to be self-motivated whilst
providing articulated career pathways;

+  Engaging with all staff in regular performance
assessment and personal development
programs  including  facilitating  open
communication to address any issues as they
arise;

- Promoting a supportive management structure
and positive organisational culture; and

«  Promoting work life balance.

HR Services and Employment Journey

«  KPIDevelopment

«  Development of Job Specification

- Strategic Human Resources Consulting

+  Opportunity for Career Transition and
Development

Third Party Products and Services

+  Online Training
+  Employment Assistance Program (EAP)

\"iR

We pride ourselves onthe

quality of our work and we

+  Weareaccountable, execute with precision.
disciplined and reliable.

We make it happen

+  Wemove with agilty and
+  Weachieve. tenacity to deliver our
goals.
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Board

The Board is ultimately responsible for
all matters relating to the running of the
Company. The Board's role is to govern
the Company rather than to manage
it. In govemning the Company, the
Directors must act in the best interests
of the Company as a whole. It is the
role of senior management to manage
the Company in accordance with the
direction and delegations of the Board
and the responsibility of the Board to
oversee the activities of management in
carrying out these delegated duties.

18
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Audit & Risk Committee

The Audit & Risk Committee is comprised
of the following Non-Executive Directors:

«  Shannon Robinson (Chair);

«  Richard Grellman (member);

+  Nancy Milne (member); and

+  Glenn Cooper (member).

The role of the Audit & Risk Committee is
toassistthe Board infulfilling its statutory
responsibilities in relation to financial

reporting, risk management and internal
control including, but not limited to:

Assessing the risk and control

environment - reviewing
accounting  policies, internal
controls, practicesanddisclosures
to assist the Board in making
informed decisions;

Monitoring and reviewing the
integrity of the financial reporting
of the Company and reviewing
significant  financial reporting
judgments.  Overseeing the
financial reporting to ensure it is
appropriate and of high quality
prior to recommending adoption
of the financial statements by the
Board for release to the ASX and
shareholders;



Corporate Governance

Good governance is embedded throughout  Principles and Recommendations 4th Edition.
FBR and is the collective responsibility of the  (Principles and Recommendations).

Board and all levels of management. Effective

corporate governance is a critical element A full copy of FBR's Corporate Governance
contributing to the longer-term success of Statement is available on the Company

FBR. website at: www.fbr.com.au/view/corporate-
governance.
FBRiscommittedtomeetingtherequirements
of the ASX Corporate Governance Council. FBR's governance framework is illustrated
below:
SHAREHOLDERS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ensures appropriate Corporate
Governance Practices are in place.

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE| |REMUNERATION & PEOPLE
Responsible for all matters related to financial COM MlTTEE

reporting and audit and risk management. Responsible for remuneration policy and
practice, and people management.

MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

Delegate authority for all matters that are not
reserved for the Board or Committees.

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM

Governance heirarchy

— Reviewing the Company's internal Remuneration & People «  Remuneration policy and packages
O financial control system and risk Committee (including superannuation
LL management systems including arrangements) of Executive
the Company's Risk Management The Remuneration & People Committee Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Internal Compliance and is comprised of the following Non- and senior executives;
Control policy; Executive Directors:
«  Employee incentive and equity
«  Monitoring,  reviewing  and + Nancy Milne (Chair) based plans including the
overseeing the external audit <  Richard Grellman (member); appropriateness of performance
function  including  matters + Shannon Robinson (member); and hurdles and total payments
concerning appointment and +  Glenn Cooper (member). proposed; and
remuneration, independence and
non-audit services; The role of the Remuneration & People . Assessing whether there is any
Committee is to manage remuneration gender or other inappropriate bias
+  Monitoring and  reviewing related issues including, but not limited in remuneration for directors, senior
compliance with the Company's to: executives or other employees.

Code of Conduct; and
«  Performing such other functions

as assigned by law or the
Company's Constitution.

FBRLIMITED
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report together with the financial statements of FER LTD ('FBR’ or the
‘Company’} and its controlled entities (‘the Group’) for the year ended 30 June 2024.

Directors’ details

The following persons were directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial year:

Mr Richard Grellman AM

Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Appointed: 15 July 2018
Qualifications: FCA

Experience and expertise: Mr Grellman
previously worked with accounting firm KPMG
for 32 years and was a member of KPMG's
National Board from 1995 to 1997 and a member
of the National Executive Committee from 1997
to 2000. Since then he has held numerous
positions as a non-executive director of both

listed and unlisted companies.

In 2007, Mr Grellman was appointed a member
of the Order of Australia for service to the
community (particularly through leadership roles
with Mission Australia and fundraising with
Variety, The Children’s Charity) and to the
finance and insurance sectors. He is the Lead
Independent Director of The Salvation Army in
Australia and a director of the National Health
Medical Research Council for Institute for
Dementia Research.

Other current listed company directorships: Non-
Executive director of Simonds Group Ltd
(ASX:SIO).

Former listed company directorships (last 3
years): Non-Executive Chairman of IPH Limited
(ASX: IPH), Lead Independent Director of NYSE
listed F45 Training Holdings Inc, Non-Executive
Chairman of Bisalloy Steel Group Limited (ASX:
BIS).

Special responsibilities: Remuneration
Committee member and Audit Committee

member.

Interests in shares: 1,024,408
Interests in Performance rights: Nil
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Mr Michael Pivac

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Appointed: 18 November 2015
Qualifications: Business Management

Experience and expertise: Michael Pivac is the
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
FBR. He spent 20 years in the aviation sector as
an Airborne Mission Coordinator with Australian
Border Protection and Search and Rescue,
specializing in Electronic Detection Systems and
strategic and tactical mission planning, working
closely with Australian and International
Government and Military Agencies. He has been
key to developing FBR's technology, business
plan and machine development strategy, and has
forged relationships with investors, builders,
product suppliers and future customers.

Other current listed company directorships: Nil

Former listed company directorships (last 3
years): Nil

Special responsibilities: Nil

Interests in  shares: 127,589,371 (includes
50,000,000 Loan Funded Shares)

Interests in Performance rights: Nil
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Mr Mark Pivac

Chief Technical Officer, Executive Director and
Founder

Appointed: 18 November 2015

Qualifications: B.Eng (Aero) Hons.

Experience and expertise: Mark Pivac is the
primary inventor of FBR's automated bricklaying
technology. He is an aeronautical and mechanical
engineer with over 34 years’ experience working
on the development and manufacturing of high
technology equipment ranging from lightweight
aircraft to heavy off road equipment and 19
years' experience in construction robaotics.

Mr Pivac has 31 years’ experience with 3D CAD
software. He also has high level mathematical
skills and extensive design, commissioning and
fault finding experience on servo controlled
motion systems achieving very high dynamic
performance.

Mr Pivac has led the technical development of
Hadrian X since its beginning and is the inventor
of a large portion of FBR's intellectual property.

Other current listed company directorships: Nil

Former listed company directorships (last 3
years): Nil

Special responsibilities: Nil

Interests in shares: 333,205,167
50,000,000 Loan Funded Shares)
Interests in performance rights: Nil

(includes

Ms Nancy Milne OAM

B. Law, FAICD

Non-Executive Director
Appointed 26 April 2022
Qualifications: B.Law, FAICD

Experience and expertise: Ms Milne has
extensive business experience as a non-executive
director and lawyer specialising in insurance,
corporate governance, risk management and
commercial dispute resolution. She was a partner
at Clayton Utz from 1997 to 2003, and a
consultant until 2012, and was awarded the
Order of Australia Medal in 2008 for services to
the legal sector and to the community. Ms Milne
has significant experience in risk management,
safety, compliance and property development.

Ms Milne is the Chair of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board, Deputy
Chair of the NSW State Insurance Regulatory
Authority, and a director of the Benevolent
Society.

Previously, she was Chair of the Securities
Exchanges Guarantee Corporation, a director of
ALE Property Group Limited and a director of
Pacific Opera.

Other current listed company directorships: Nil

Former listed company directorships (last 3
years): Nil

Special responsibilities: Remuneration
Committee Chair and Audit Committee member.

Interests in shares: 1,182,000
Interests in performance rights: Nil
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Ms Shannon Robinson

MNon-Executive Director
Appointed 23 April 2024
Qualifications: B. Law, MAICD, FGIA

Experience and expertise: Ms Robinson is an
experienced company director and a former
corporate lawyer with 20 years of corporate
experience. Ms Robinson is a graduate member
of the Australian Institute of Company Directors
(AICD) and a fellow of the Governance Institute
of Australia (GIA). Ms Robinson has been a
director of several ASX-listed technology
companies, including as Chair of FBR Ltd from
2015 to 2018.

Other current listed company directorships:
MNon-Executive Director of Yojee Limited
(ASX:YOJ).

Former listed company directorships (last 3
years): Nil

Special responsibilities: Remuneration
Committee member and Audit Committee chair.

Interests in shares: Nil
Interests in performance rights: Nil.
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Mr Glenn Cooper

Non-Executive Director
Appointed 23 April 2024
Qualifications: GAICD, Dip. Eng.

Experience and expertise: Mr Cooper has an
engineering, sales and business operations
background with over 25 years' experience as a
senior  executive in  the  construction,
manufacturing and quarrying industries working
with and for global OEMs such as Liebherr,
Sandvik and Hitachi. He is experienced across all
business functions in the construction equipment
industry including sales, commercialisation and
operational management.

Mr Cooper has held previous (and current)
directorships and senior executive roles at
regional and global levels for major global OEMs
and has recently been group CEO of ASX listed
company, Bisalloy Steel Group Limited (ASX:BIS).
Mr Cooper is a graduate of the AICD.

Other current listed company directorships: Nil.

Former listed company directorships (last 3
years): Managing Director of Bisalloy Steel Group
Limited (ASX:BIS).

Special responsibilities: Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee member,

Interests in shares: Nil
Interests in performance rights: Nil.
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Mr Grant Anderson

Independent Non-Executive Director
23 October 2019
Ceased: 23 April 2024
Qualifications: FAICD, CPM - FAMI

Appointed:

Experience and expertise: Grant Anderson has
over 40 years of experience in the design and
manufacturing sectars, at the level of executive,
CEO and managing director for a number of
public and private best practice international
companies. Grant also has extensive Board
experience in both ASX-listed and private
companies across multiple industries including
automation, technology and robotics. He has
experience as a Director in multiple countries
including joint wenture companies. Previous
Board experience has included Berklee Limited
(Deputy Chairman), Techni Waterjet Pty Ltd.
(Chairman) and The ANCA Group Pty Ltd. which
included multiple international subsidiaries.

Grant is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors, and a life member of the
FAPM.

Other current listed company directorships: Nil,

Former listed company directorships (last 3
years): Nil.

Mr Greg Smith

Independent Non-Executive Director

5 August 2020

23 April 2024

Qualifications: MBA, Grad Dip Management

Appointed:
Ceased:

Experience and expertise: Greg Smith has 39
years' experience in the building products
industry in manufacturing, technical and sales
across the clay and concrete products sectors.

Greg specialises in operations and project
management, safety transformation leadership,
lean implementation and contract negotiation.
Mr Smith is also an Officer in the Australian Army
Reserve and has served for 40 years, specialising
in Operations and Training.

Mr Smith holds a of Business

Administration (Exec) from the University of

Master

CQueensland, a Graduate Diploma in
Management from the University of Queensland,
a Certificate of Applied Science — Industrial
Ceramics from the Holmesglen College of TAFE, a
Certificate in Quality Control from the School of
Mines Ballarat TAFE, and is a graduate of the
Company Directors Course run by the Australian

Institute of Company Directors.
Other current listed company directorships: Nil

Former listed company directorships (last 3
years): Nil
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Company Secretary

Mr Aidan Flynn B Comm (B 5c, CPA, PGrad Dip Energy, GAICD, Grad Dip Applied Corporate
Governance) was appointed as the Company Secretary on 30 June 2021. He was also the Chief

Financial Officer until 22 January 2024,
Principal activities

FBR is the inventor of the Hadrian X*®, the world’s first automated end-to-end bricklaying robot.
Functioning like a 3D printer, the Hadrian X® builds brick structures in situ, course by course, using
adhesive to bond the bricks together. The Hadrian X® is capable of working in outdoor environments
thanks to the unique Dynamic Stabilisation Technology®, or DST®, which rapidly measures and
adjusts for dynamic interference caused by uncontrolled environmental conditions. The Hadrian X*®
has completed a number of suburban builds under commercial contract, demonstrating its ability to
build brick structures safer, faster, and more accurately than traditional bricklaying methods.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

Mo other significant changes were made in the state of affairs during the period, other than as

follows.

In January 2024, the Company executed a binding suite of agreements with CRH Ventures Americas,
Inc. {'CRH Ventures”), a subsidiary of CRH plc (‘CRH’), one of the largest concrete block suppliers in
the United States. Affiliates of CRH Ventures and FBR executed a Demonstration Program agreement
to jointly construct up to 10 houses in the United States with FBR’s Hadrian X® construction robot,
while FBR granted CRH Ventures an option to enter into an exclusive joint venture for the supply of
Wall as a Service® in the United States following the successful achievement of the milestones of the
Demanstration Program. Under the agreement, FBR is providing one Hadrian X® built to Australian
specifications to complete the demonstration builds.

Upon execution of the agreements, US5200,000 of the US$2.0 million Option fee was paid;
USS$800,000 was subsequently paid upon completion of a Factory Acceptance Test on 20 February
2024; and U55600,000 was paid upon completion of the US Site Acceptance Test in August 2024,

The remaining 20% (US5400,000) will be payable immediately upon the completion of the
Demonstration Program. Milestone payments are non-refundable,

Review of operations and financial results

Wellard

FBR's Wellard portfolio initially comprised of five undeveloped blocks of land that were purchased by
FBR and developed utilising its Hadrian X*® robot with a selection of Perth builders. Of the five homes
built in Wellard, four have been sold, and the final home is expected to reach practical completion

shortly.

Willagee

FBR completed robotic construction activities at the Willagee Project in March 2024. The build, located
in the Perth suburb of Willagee, comprised building the walls for 16 two-storey townhouses, for
Inspired Homes, a large builder of both residential and multi-unit dwellings, and Satterley, who are
one of Australia’s largest land developers, on one of their premier developments in the state.
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Located in two groups across the development, the northern and southern sides each contain eight
two-storey units for a total of 16 units. The previous generation Hadrian X® is robotically constructing
the load bearing walls and internal partition walls.

Given the complexity of the project, which included a number of first-time accomplishments for FBR
such as common party walls between each townhouse, a triple-leaf cavity wall system, acoustic brick
ties, as well as steel reinforcements and fireproofing, FBR adopted a staged approach, completing all
the first storey courses before the formation and installation of the second storey slabs and then
completing the second storey walls, including up to a record height of 9.2 metres. The townhouses are
located on a rising site with each townhouse standing on a different level. This meant that the Hadrian
X® was situated on the adjacent block building below ground level, moving to continue work on the
opposite side once a side is complete, enabling the next concrete slab to be poured.

Construction of the project utilised almost 70,000 concrete masonry units (CMUs) equating to over
350,000 standard brick equivalents, making up wall area of 6km?.

St James

The 5t James Project comprises eight two-storey townhouses for developer Riculallo Pty Ltd, in the
Perth suburb of 5t James. FBR mobilised to site in January 2024 and promptly completed the first four
stages, ready for the second storey slabs to be poured. Work on the second storey walls began once
the slabs were poured and ready, with completion of FBR’s work on the project expected shortly.

Next-generation Hadrian X® Development

Over the first half of financial year 2024 (FY24), having completed manufacture of the first of its next-
generation Hadrian X® robots, testing and optimisation activities became the main focus of the
engineering team and in September 2023 the next-generation Hadrian X® completed its first compliant
structure.

The next-generation Hadrian X® features a modular design with distributed control architecture which
allows work on individual modules to progress independently, while also providing greater levels of
customisation, quicker repair work and interchangeability once in service. Additionally, the next-
generation Hadrian X® features a new and simplified tablet-based Human Machine Interface (HMI),
used throughout the testing and commissioning phase, and is intended to greatly enhance user
experience and provide greater accessibility to machine operators when in the field.

As noted above, in lanuary 2024, the Company executed a binding suite of agreements with CRH
Ventures one of the largest concrete block suppliers in the United States. Affiliates of CRH Ventures
and FBR executed a Demonstration Program agreement to jointly construct up to 10 houses in the
United States with FBR's Hadrian X® construction robot, while FBR granted CRH Ventures an option to
enter into an exclusive joint venture for the supply of Wall as a Service® in the United States following
the successful achievement of the milestones of the Demonstration Program. Under the agreement,

FBR is providing one Hadrian X® built to Australian specifications to complete the demonstration
builds.

Upon execution of the agreements, US5200,000 of the US52.0 million Option fee was paid;
US$800,000 was subsequently paid upon completion of a Factory Acceptance Test on 20 February
2024; and U55600,000 was paid upon completion of the US Site Acceptance Test in August 2024,
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The remaining 20% (U55400,000) will be payable immediately upon the completion of the
Demaonstration Program. Milestone payments are non-refundable.

For the year ended 30 June 2024, the Company reported a pre-tax loss of $27,773,437, compared to
a loss of $26,652,562 in 2023. The increased loss was mainly attributed to continued expenditure on
the Hadrian X program and the expansion of activities into the USA.

Dividends

Mo dividends were proposed or paid during the period or up to the date of signing this report.
Subsequent Events

15 July 2024 — The Company issued 12,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares upon exercise of ungquoted
employee options in accordance with the Company’s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

17 July 2024 — 50,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares previously issued as loan funded shares to the
Executive Directors were sold to an institutional investor at a price of $0.041 per share to raise a
total of $2.05 million for FBR. The incentive loan period in respect of which the director equity
incentive loan-funded shares were issued expired during the year. Full proceeds of the sale of these
shares went directly and solely to FBR in part repayment of the outstanding loans. The balance of
the outstanding non cash loans was forgiven under the terms of the loan funded share incentive

plan.

22 July 2024 — The Company issued 8,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares upon exercise of unquoted
employee options in accordance with the Company’s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

7 August 2024 — The Company sold a block of residential land (classified as Inventory) for $436,000
and applied the proceeds, net of taxes and selling costs, to repayment of the Construction Loan
Facility. The balance of the Construction Loan Facility was repaid in September,

9 August 2024 — The Company issued 328,947,368 fully paid ordinary shares to new and existing
institutional, sophisticated and strategic investors at an issue price of $0.038 per share to raise a

total of 512.5 million before costs.

14 August 2024 - The Company received confirmation from CRH Ventures that the first next-
generation Hadrian X® has successfully met their requirements and has completed Site Acceptance
Testing at the Fort Myers facility in Florida, United States. An independent structural engineer
provided confirmation that the walls of the test build were consistent with the design and met
applicable building standards. Completion of Site Acceptance Testing triggered a US$600,000
payment by CRH Ventures to FER.

10 September 2024 — The Company completed the walls of the first hame in its U5 Demonstration
program with CRH Ventures, with the walls certified as compliant with the design and building code
in Florida.

Other than the events described above there are no other adjusting or significant non-adjusting
events that have occurred between reporting date and the date of authorisation.
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Material Business Risks

The following is a summary of the material business risks of the Company. Any of these risks may
adversely impact on the financial and operating performance and prospects of the group and on the
ability of the group to continue operating as a going concern. These are not listed in any order of
importance and do not constitute an exhaustive list.

Technology risk

The Company is developing and commercialising brand new ground breaking technology. The
technology development cycle contains significant unknown and variable factors, some beyond the
control of the Company. The Hadrian technology being developed is not yet fully commercialised.
There is a significant risk that the Company is unable to commercialise the technology to the level
required.

Competition risk

Globally there are other companies developing robotic/automated construction technology
solutions, such as 3D concrete printing. Any increase in robotic/automated competition could result
in significant loss of potential revenue-generating opportunities and the devaluation of the

Company’'s technology in the marketplace.
Supply chain risk

The Company contracts primarily from Perth, Western Australia with a number of key international
suppliers on which it relies for the supply of equipment and equipment parts. A significant disruption
or delay in supply could cause a delay in the availability of the Company's products, leading to a

potential loss of commercialisation opportunities.
Intellectual property and data loss, theft or corruption risk

The Company’s business relies on its ability to protect its intellectual property and any
improvements to it. The intellectual property may not be capable of being legally protected, may be
the subject of unauthorised disclosure, may be unlawfully infringed and/or the Company may incur
substantial costs in protecting its intellectual property rights. Hacking or exploitation of some
unidentified vulnerability in the Company’s network could lead to loss, theft or corruption of data
and breach of privacy. Although the Company has extensive strategies and protections in place to
protect its intellectual property rights, minimise security breaches, protect data and ensure cyber
resilience, these strategies may not be successful which could have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s financial position.

Liability for defect risk

The Company is exposed to risks relating to structural and building defects as it pertains to the
components of construction the Company has completed as a sub-contractor as part of the
statutory warranty of new construction. Any structural or building defect may result in a negative
customer experience, potential brand damage and financial costs to the Company for repairs and
rectification.
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Funding risk

The continued technology development and commercialisation and operations of the Company are
dependent on its ability to generate sufficient cash flows from future operations or obtain financing
through debt and/or equity means. There is a risk that the Company may not be able to access
sufficient funds, which could have a material adverse impact on the Company's business and
financial condition.

Likely developments, business strategies and prospects

FBR commenced its international expansion in FY24, deploying the first next-generation Hadrian X*®
to the United States to undertake a Demonstration Program in Fort Myers, Florida. Upon successful
completion of the Demonstration Program, CRH Ventures has up to 45 days in which to exercise the
Option to form a joint venture with Fastbrick Americas. Upon exercise of the Option, the joint
venture will immediately place an order for a further 20 Hadrian X® construction robots, to be

funded through a US540 million loan facility provided to the joint venture by CRH Americas.

FBR currently maintains 100% ownership and control of its global intellectual property and global
commercial opportunity, giving the Company a monopoly position as the only enabling technology

for autonomous brick and block wall construction.

Key Relationships — In parallel with the Hadrian X® program, FBR will continue to develop its existing
relationships with key partners as well as attracting new partners to help deliver on strategic
objectives.

FBR continue to maintain strong relationships with domestic and international block suppliers,
including the aforementioned Demaonstration Program and JV Option with CRH Ventures, the
investment subsidiary of global leading building materials provider CRH Plc.

In March 2024, Liebherr USA Co. and FBR agreed to use Liebherr facilities in Miami, Florida as a service
and maintenance base for the next-generation Hadrian X® robots deployed to the United States. FBR
will use the Liebherr facilities to service and maintain Hadrian X*® robots, and the parties will engage in
knowledge transfer of the Hadrian X® mechanical and electrical systems and maintenance and service
requirements with a view to accelerating the manufacturing ramp up upon execution of a long-term
Manufacturing and Commercialisation Agreement. Given the timing of the deployment of Hadrian X®
robots to the United States to complete the recently announced Demonstration Program with CRH
Ventures, with a view to FBR and CRH subsequently forming a joint venture to deliver Wall as a
Service®™ in the United States, FBR and Liebherr agreed to extend Phase One of the Memorandum of
Understanding between the parties by 12 months to allow sufficient time to commence operations,
validate achievement of key performance targets, and for the agreement of commercial terms for the

manufacturing and commercialisation of the Hadrian X* globally.

The period of exclusivity for the negotiation of an agreement relating to the delivery of Wall as a
Service in Mexico granted to GP Vivienda under a non-binding Term Sheet ended in November 2023.
FBR turned its strategic focus to the high-margin market of the United 5tates and associated
preparations for its first international deployment there.

Intellectual Property Portfolio — FBR's proprietary combined Hadrian X®, DST® and Fastbrick Wall
System® technology is protected by a broad and expanding portfolio of intellectual property rights in
key markets including Australia, USA, Europe and the GCC region.
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In November 2023, the Company advised that it had filed nine new International PCT patent
applications covering a range of technologies involved in the next-generation Hadrian X®, bringing
the total number of patent families covering the Hadrian X®, D5T®, the Fastbrick Wall System® and
adjacent outdoor robotics applications utilising FER's core technology to over 40. The filing of these
applications further strengthened FBR's leading position within the construction robotics space and
is in line with the Company’s strategy of securing the commercial opportunity for dynamically
stabilised placement of product in outdoor, uncontrolled environments through long-term patent
protection.

FBR Employees — As FBR progresses the commercialisation of the Hadrian X® technology and
expands into domestic and international markets, it anticipates increasing staff numbers in order to
meet the needs of respective areas of the business.

New Applications for FBER’s core technology

Subject to successfully executing key components of the Company’s Hadrian X® program, FBR
intends to seed new Research & Development projects to utilise the Company’s core DST®. FBR has
previously completed preliminary testing on the viability of its existing platform in the delivery of 3D
concrete printing applications and has held discussions with various parties about D5T® licensing
opportunities for 3D concrete printing and other applications. In the immediate term, FBR remains
focused on delivering on the Hadrian X® program, however at an appropriate time the Company will
increase its allocation of resources to progress some of the new applications and commercialisation
opportunities for D5T®.

Directors’ meetings

The number of Directors’ Meetings {including meetings of Committees of Directors) held during the
year, and the number of meetings attended by each Director is as follows:

—Or persona

Director Board Meetings Audit Committee Remuneration Committee
A [ B A | B A B
Mr Richard Grellman 7 7 7 ] & 5]
Mr Michael Pivac 7 7 MiA MIA, MiA Mis,
Mr Mark Pivac T 7 MIA A, MiA A,
Ms Nancy Milne T 7 7 5 L] 5]
I Ms Shannon Robinson 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mr Glenn Cooper 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mr Grant Anderson 5] & & ] 5 ]
Mr Greg Smith g G G 5 5 o

The current Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee consists of Nancy Milne (Chair of
Remuneration Committee), Shannon Robinson (Chair of Audit Committee), Richard Grellman and
Glenn Cooper. The executives are invited to the Committee meetings at the discretion of the
respective Committee Chair.
Where:

¢« column A is the number of meetings the Director was entitled to attend

* column B is the number of meetings the Director attended
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Unissued shares under option

Unissued ordinary shares of FBR under option as at 30 June 2024,

Date options granted Expiry date Exercise Number under
price of option

24 October 2023 31 December 2024 | L 84,000,000
28 May 2024 31 December 2024 50.026 3,000,000
Total 50.026 87,000,000
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Remuneration Report (audited)

On behalf of the Directors of FBR Ltd, | am pleased to present the Remuneration Report for the
year ended 30 June 2024,

The Board is committed to a Remuneration framework that drives superior performance,
attracts and appropriately rewards and retains high performing Executives, delivers shareholder
value and encourages decision-making focused on the longer term.

Short term incentive targets have been set at challenging levels designed to drive innovation,
continual value creation and long term business sustainability and growth. The Board exercises

its discretion to recognise outstanding levels of achievement.

The information provided in the Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with
the requirements under the Corporations Act 2001, ASX Corporate Governance Principles and

Recommendations and Accounting Standards.

Nancy Milne

Chair of Remuneration Committee
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Remuneration Report (audited)- CONTINUED

The Directors of FBR Ltd {'FBR’ or 'the Company’ or 'the Group’) present the Remuneration
Report for the year ended 30 June 2024, for the Non-Executive Directors, Executive Directors
and other Key Management Personnel, prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001
and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

The Remuneration Report is set out under the following main headings:
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration;
Details of remuneration;

Service agreements;

Share-based remuneration;

Bonuses included in remuneration; and

Other information.

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

Key Management Personnel are responsible for the management, planning and execution of the
activities of FBR and other executives. The Key Management Personnel for FBR, in accordance
with 5300A of the Corporations Act 2001, are outlined on page 20.

FBR's remuneration strategy has been designed to a build a high-performance culture and attract,
retain and motivate its employees, encouraging them to meet their full potential. In line with this
strategy, FBR provides market competitive fixed remuneration and incentives. At this stage of the
Company’'s commercialisation journey, incentives offered are share-based.

The principles of FBR's executive strategy and supporting incentive programs and framewaorks
are:
* toalign rewards to business outcomes that deliver value to shareholders;

s to drive a high performance culture by setting challenging objectives and rewarding high

performing individuals; and
* toensure remuneration is competitive in the relevant employment marketplace to support

the attraction, motivation and retention of executive talent.

FBR has a remuneration framework that is market competitive and complementary to the
reward strategy of the Group.

The Board, with the assistance and guidance of the Remuneration Committee, who operate in
accordance with its Board approved charter, is responsible for determining and reviewing

compensation arrangements for the Group.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Ms Nancy Milne and is comprised of three {3) other
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee met six (6) times during
the year.

The remuneration structure that has been adopted by the Group consists of the following

components:

* Fixed remuneration being annual salary;

* Employee Loan Facility provided to executive directors; and
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Remuneration Report (audited) - CONTINUED
# ashare option and performance rights Scheme for employees.
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration - CONTINUED

The Non-Executive Directors on the Board assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount
of remuneration on a periodic basis by reference to recent employment market conditions, with
the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit by the retention of a high quality
Board, as well as a high retention of overall employees, Key Management Personnel and other
Executives.

The payment of bonuses, share options, share performance rights and other incentive payments
are to be reviewed by the Non-Executive Directors annually as part of the review of executive
remuneration. All bonuses, options and incentives must be linked to pre-determined

performance criteria.
Fixed Remuneration

Fixed Remuneration consists of base remuneration {which is calculated on a total cost basis), as
well as employer contributions to superannuation funds. Fixed Remuneration is reviewed against
relevant market benchmarking of comparator companies, in addition to considering the
individual contribution and competence levels.

Employee Loan Facility

The Company offered a loan facility to FER's employees (Employee Loan Facility) for the purpose
of assisting the Group's employees and officers with meeting any tax liabilities which may become

due and payable as a result of the Company issuing the employee equity-based incentives.

The Board previously engaged an external law firm to ensure the Employee Loan Facility was
permissible under Australian law, including the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) (the Act) and the ASX
Listing Rules.

Loyalty Leave Program

As the Group is committed to providing benefits that encourage both engagement and well-
being, it implemented a Loyalty Leave Program that provides employees with an additional type
of leave benefit called “Loyalty Leave”, which is over and above existing annual leave and carer’s
leave entitlements.

The Leave Loyalty Program is designed to reward FBR employees’ tenure with the Group through
the provision of additional leave each year in reflection of the length of time they have been with
the Group. For every year of employment up to a cap of five years, an employee will earn one (1)

additional day of leave per year which is awarded on the anniversary of an employee’s start date.
Short Term Incentive (STi)

5Tl awards to FBR Personnel and executives are made under the performance rights plan and
employee securities incentive plan rules and are delivered in the form of Share Performance
Rights (Rights) or share options.

Each Right entitles the holder {subject to achievement of the specified performance conditions)
to one fully paid ordinary share in the Group for nil consideration. The purpose of the equity-

based Short Term Incentive (5T1) is to incentivise and reward FBR employees {including Key
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Remuneration Report (audited) - CONTINUED
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration - CONTINUVED

Management Personnel) for achieving Group and individual performance objectives that drive
shareholder value whilst simultaneously conserving the Group's cash.

The 5Tl is awarded based on an annual assessment of Group and Individual performance linked
to the Group’s performance and strategic development, focusing on core drivers of shareholder
value, to drive both a short and long term perspective on performance, and protect the long term
interests of the shareholders.

FBR monitors staff performance to ensure key objectives are being met. The performance
measures involve the use of annual performance objectives, metrics, performance appraisals and

continuing emphasis on living the Group values.

As part of the continued growth of the Group, it will look to introduce financial performance
incentives whereby performance measures will be set annually after consultation with the
Directors and Executives and will be specifically tailored to the areas where each executive has a
level of control. The measures will target areas the Board believes hold the greatest potential for
expansion and profit and cover financial and non-financial measures.

The most recent 5TI's were issued with a performance period from 28 May 2024 to 30 June 2025.
Performance Rights are granted at the commencement of the period with awards vesting to
shares at the end of the performance period subject to performance against the specified
performance conditions in the case of personal objectives, or upon satisfaction of the requisite
performance conditions in the case of Group objectives.

The Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) for FBR's personnel are summarised as follows:

+ financial — not applicable for FY23 & FY24, however it is expected future financial years will
have revenues, operating profit and earnings per share; and

« non-financial - safety, strategic technical and commercial growth and development and
corporate goals set individually based on job descriptions and the attainment of the Group's
overall strategic and corporate objectives.

The Board may, at its discretion, award bonuses for exceptional performance in relation to each
individual,

The number of performance rights and options granted in respect to the FY24 STl are
determined based on the VWAP at the start of the performance period.

The value of performance rights is therefore aligned with shareholder interests as executives
receive value aligned with share price movements. Value is not realised until the vested rights
are exercised into shares.

Performance objectives are set by the FBR Board in line with the annual business planning and
budgeting process. The weighting for each target is reviewed annually and may vary from year
to year to reflect its criticality, effort to achieve and impact on the business.

In FY24, Group objectives accounted for 50% of the performance objectives with personal
objectives accounting for the remaining 50%.
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Remuneration Report (audited) - CONTINUED
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration - CONTINUVED
Long Term Incentive (LTI)

LTI awards to staff are made under the performance rights plan and employee securities
incentive plan rules and are delivered in the form of Performance Rights (Rights) and options.
Each Right entitles the holder (subject to achievement of the specified performance conditions)
to one fully paid ordinary share in the Company for nil consideration.

The most recent LTI's were issued with a performance period from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2025.
Performance Rights are granted at the commencement of the three {3) year period with awards
vesting to shares at the end of the three-year performance period subject to performance against
the specified performance conditions in the case of personal objectives, or upon satisfaction of

the requisite performance conditions in the case of Group objectives.

In the event of a change of control of the Company, the performance period end date will be
generally accelerated and brought forward to the date of the change of control and awards will

vest over this shortened period, subject to ultimate Board discretion.
Non-Executive Directors

Total remuneration for all Non-Executive Directors, last voted upon by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting in November 2023, is not to exceed A$550,000 per annum and is set
based on advice from external advisors with reference to the fees paid to other Non-Executive
Directors of comparable companies. Non-Executive Directors’ fees are presently up to A$500,000

per annum.

Mon-Executive Directors do not receive performance related remuneration. Directors’ fees cover
all main Board and Committee activities.

Executive Directors
Executive Director fees are disclosed in part {b) of the Remuneration Report.
Use of remuneration consultants

Remuneration is compared with the external market by industry salary surveys and during
recruitment activities generally. the Remuneration Committee considers the industry
benchmarking of executive remuneration to ensure the effective alignment with business

requirements, market practice and key shareholder group expectations.

During the period or prior period no remuneration recommendations, as defined by the
Corporations Act, were provided by independent remuneration consultants,

Voting and comments made at the Company’s last Annual General Meeting

FBR received 98.54% of ‘FOR’ votes on its Remuneration Report for the 2023 Annual General
Meeting.
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Remuneration Report (audited) - CONTINUED
a Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration - CONTINUED

Consequences of performance on shareholder wealth

In considering the Group’s perfarmance and benefits for shareholder wealth, the Board have
regard to the following indices in respect of the current financial year and the previous four (4)

financial years:

EPS loss [cents) 0.68

Dividends (cents per -
share)

> Net loss ($'000) 27,773
Share price (5) 0.024

0.81

26.652
0.026

0.85

19,979
0.017

0.45

9,333
0.040

0.68

10,997
0.032

b Details of remuneration
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Details of the nature and amount of each element of the remuneration of each Key
Management Personnel (KMP) of each entity are shown in the following tables:




Remuneration Report (audited) - CONTINUED

MNon-Executive Directors

Details of remuneration - CONTINUED
DIRECTOR AND QOTHER KEY MAKAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMLINE RATION
=
g - a
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£t 2 g & 25| 2 2E g g
Em Year E I 2 < E 2 2
Mr Michael Pivac 004 | 38901 | | ars00 | wam -| 182461 | 304304 | 987438 |  a9%
Managing Director & i
Chief Exeoutive Offices 2023 | 416536 | 27500 | 15,587 298045 | 312,185 | 1,069,857 57%
W Mark Pivac 2004 | 454,168 53| 27500 ! 39,550 - 182461 | 304,304 | 1,008,041 48%
Executive Director ' e [
& Chief Technical Officer | 2023 449,586 | 414 1 27500 1 49,650 258045 | 312,185 | 1,137,384 S4%
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II!?:::1'.‘h'|:i"|an:| Grellman 2024 153,153 -1 1847 170,000 0%
Non-txecutive Chainman | 2023 | 146,251 | 15,356 161,607 0%
Ms Nancy Milne OAM | 2024 | 99,009 | -1 10901 | - - - -1 110000 0%
Nor-txecutive Director | 2023 | 86,979 | 9,133 96,112 0%
Mr Glenn Cooper 2004 | 16771 | -1 1885 ] - - - -1 1Bsl6 ] 0%
Nor-Executive Director | 2023

Ms Shannon Robinson | 2024 16,771 | -1 1845 18,616 0%

Kor-Executive Director

Former Non-Executive D

2023

irectors

Wr Gireg Smith 2004 | 82,710 T ] _ ) 1 91008 | -
Non-Lxscutive Directer | 2023 86,979 | 9,133 66112 %
Mr Grant Anderson 2004 | 82,710 | -1 9008 . . . - 91,808 0%
Non-beecutve Drector | 2023 | 86,979 | 9,133 | | . | 96112 0%

W Rowan Caren 2024 105,769 - 11,080 7,283 | 26,731 | 150,863 18%
Chief Financial Officer 2023 i 0%
E*:::z:ath“ Lawe 2004 | 239,937 - 70 27735 239533 | 119126 | 65031 |  55%
Genersl Counsel 2023 | 213,178 | 23,014 799 297,533 | 149,621 | 690,145 65%
Mr Kiel Chivers 2004 | 265490 | - | 26895 | 22,404 - | 264908 | 148908 | 728605 |  57%
Chief Operating Officer | 2023 | 250,000 | 25282 | 819 | | 371916 | 166139 | 814166 |  66%

Mr Aidan Flynn 024 | 209214 18818 | 16905 | (20,192) = 28552 238176 111681 = 603,154 58%
Company Secretary, Chief .

compam St 203 | 291,815 | 881 | 25292 | 18,384 371,916 | 166139 | 874,027 62%
2024 Total 2024 | 2,164,693 18876 | 184214 | 111,052 28552 1134270 988,323 | 4,629,080 |  46%
2023 Total 2023 | 2,033,903 | 1295 | 171353 | 85239 - | 1637.463 | 1,106,269 | 5035522 | 54%
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Remuneration Report (audited) - CONTINUED

Details of remuneration - CONTINUED

i. Ms Shannon Robinson was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 23 April 2024

ii. Mr Glenn Cooper was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 23 April 2024

iii. MrGreg Smith resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 23 April 2024

iv. Mr Grant Anderson resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 23 April 2024

V. Mr Aidan Flynn ceased to be CFO and o KMP on 22 January 2024

vi. Mr Rowan Caren was appointed CFC on 22 January 2024

The relative proportions of remuneration that are linked to performance and those that are fixed are as

follows:
Name Fixed remuneration At risk — 5T1 Equity At risk — LTI Equity Plan
Plan
Executive Directors
Mr Michael Pivac 5438,901 | 25,000,000 Loan 50,000,000 Loan
+ $27,500 superannuation Funded Shares® Funded Shares*
Mr Mark Pivac $460,771 | 25,000,000 Loan 50,000,000 Loan
+ 527,500 superannuation Funded Shares® Funded Shares*
Non-Executive Directors
Mr Richard Grellman $170,000 il il
including statutory
superannuation
Mr Glenn Cooper? $110,000 Nil Nil
including statutory
superannuation
Mrs Shannon Robinson® 5110,000 Mil il
including statutory
superannuation
Ms Nancy Milne $110,000 Nil Nil
including statutory
superannuation

Mr Glenn Cooper was appaiﬁred a5 Non-Executive Director on 24 April 2024

1

2. Ms Shannen Robinson was appointed as Non-Execulive Director on 24 April 2024
3. Loan Funded Shares have o loon valve of 4.0 cents per share
4

Loan Funded Shares hove on overoge loon value of 4.25 cents per share

The Company is reviewing its salary mix to ensure the Company’s Executives and Non-Executives are

benchmarked to its peers and comparable technology companies. The Board acknowledges that the

above two Executive Directors have a substantial equity position and are incentivised via their Loan

Funded Shares, some of which were issued following sharehaolder approval at the Company's 2020

AGM. The remainder of the Loan Funded Shares were issued following shareholder approval at the
Company's 2022 AGM, half of which were extended by 12 months at the Company’'s 2023 AGM.

Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Executive Directors and other Key
Management Personnel are formalised in an Executive Service Agreement or employment contract.

The major provisions of the agreements relating to remuneration are set out below:
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Remuneration Report [audited) — CONTINUED
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Personnel Base salary l Term of agreement Notice period
Executive Directors

Mr Michael Pivac 5438,901 Unspecified Six months
Mr Mark Pivac S460,771 Unspecified Six months
MNon-Executive Directors

Mr Richard Grellman 5153,153 Unspecified MNone
Mr Grant Anderson 599,099 Unspecified MNone
Mr Greg Smith $99,099 | Unspecified None
Ms Nancy Milne 599,099 I Unspecified None
Executives

Mr Jonathan Lawe-Davies! 5333,333 Unspecified Three months
Mr Rowan Caren $275,000 Unspecified Three months
Mr Kiel Chivers 5273,973 Unspecified Three months

1.  Bose sofory is bosed on normal full time working howrs ond is pro roted down only, depending on the octual hours worked,

Share-based remuneration

Mo new shares were issued to Directors during the year. During the year, the Company issued

58,680,000 fully paid ordinary shares to employees, as a result of the achievement of vesting

conditions associated with performance milestones in accordance with the Company’s Performance

Rights Plan.

During the year, the Company did not issue any ordinary shares as loan funded shares to the two

Executive Directors, however, following shareholder approval, the term of the loan in respect of
50,000,000 ordinary shares was extended by 12 months to 28 December 2024. The incentive loan
period in respect of a separate 50,000,000 ordinary shares expired on 28 December 2023 and the

underlying ordinary shares were then subsequently sold to a third party on 17 July 2024. Full

proceeds of the sale were received by the Company and there was no benefit to the Executive

Directors.

Loan Funded Shares an
issue

Mr Michael Pivac

Mr Mark Pivac

Mr Michael Pivac

Mr Mark Pivac

Mr Michael Pivac

Mr Mark Pivac

NUMBER
ISSUED

25,000,000

25,000,000

25,000,000

25,000,000

25,000,000

25,000,000

GRAMT DATE

24 December 2020

24 December 2020

28 December 2022

28 December 2022

28 December 2022

28 December 2022

INCENTIVE LOAN PERIOD
DUE DATE

24 December 2023

24 December 2023

28 December 2024

28 December 2024

28 December 2025

28 December 2025

FBR LIMITED
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LEMAN
AMOUNT
(CENTS PER
SHARE)

4.5

4.5

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

FAIR VALUE
AT GRANT
DATE
(CENTS PER
SHARE)

2.5

2.5

1.2

1.2

25

2.5
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Remuneration Report (audited) - CONTINUED

d Share-based remuneration - CONTINUED

Options Approved by the Board during the year

No new options were issued to Directors during the year. There were 87,000,000 unlisted options

approved and issued by the board during the year.

Performance rights granted during the year

No new performance rights were issued to Directors during the year. During the year, the Company

issued 30,000,000 unlisted performance rights to the Key Management Personnel of FBR. These

performance rights have no escrow period and are split in the following classes.

CLASS A

nly

O Mr Jonathan Lawe-

r Rowan Caren

Davies

M

r Rowan Caren

Mr Jonathan Lawe-

Q[)avies

LM

Fo

r Kiel Chivers

NUMBEER
IS5UED

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

MUMBER
IS5UED
5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

GRANT DATE

28 May 2024

28 May 2024

28 May 2024

GRANT DATE

28 May 2024

28 May 2024

28 May 2024

i. 15,000,000 Performance Rights Class A

MILESTONE DATE

30 June 2025

30 June 2025

30 June 2025

MILESTONE DATE

30 June 2025

30 June 2025

30 June 2025

EXPIRY DATE

31 July 2026

31 July 2026

31 July 2026

EXPIRY DATE

31 July 2026

31 July 2026

31 July 2026

EXERCISE
PRICE
(CENTS)

Nil

Nil

Nil

EXERCISE
PRICE
[CENTS)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Vesting conditions for 15,000,000 Performance Rights of Class A; By 30 June 2025, the Company

has received binding purchase orders for its products and services with a cumulative total value of

530 million AUD.

All Class A Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 June 2025 and an expiry date of 31 July

2026. If unconverted, Class A Performance Rights will expire on the expiry date.

ii. 15,000,000 Performance Rights Class B

Vesting condition for Class B; Performance review results based on successful completion of
employee individual performance goals.

Milestone date is 30 June 2025. Expiry date is 31 July 2026.

If unconverted, Class B Performance Rights will expire on the expiry date.
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AT GRANT
DATE [CENTS)

2.3

2.3

2.3

FAIR VALUE
AT GRANT
DATE [CENTS)
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2.3
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Remuneration Report (audited) - CONTINUED

Share-based remuneration - CONTINUED

The performance rights were valued using the spot price on grant date. The spot price was $0.023 per
share at the close of trade on 28 May 2024, being the date the acceptance offers were signed and
dated by the employees. The fair value of these 30,000,000 performance rights granted during the
current year, assuming that 100% of the performance rights will vest, was $690,000 of this $80,196
was expensed during the year.

Bonuses included in remuneration

At present, the Company does not have a formal cash STl structure in place, as the Company
continues to mature, it may review whether a cash 5Tl plan is suitable.

Other information

Options held by Key Management Personnel

During the year the Company issued 87,000,000 options to Key Management Personnel, including
their related parties. Details of movements in options balances during the year are set out below:

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

PERSONNEL BALANCE AT GRANTED AS EXERCISED EXPIRY  HELD AT THE END
START OF YEAR  REMUNERATION OF REPORTING

PERIOD

Mr Michael Pivac . - . - -
Mr Mark Pivac - - - - -
Mr Rowan Caren - - - - -
Mr Jonathan Lawe Davies 16,000,000 27,000,000 - (16,000,000) 27,000,000
Mr Kiel Chivers 20,000,000 30,000,000 - (20,000,000) 30,000,000
Mr Aidan Flynn (Ex KMP) 20,000,000 30,000,000 - (20,000,000) 30,000,000
Total 56,000,000 87,000,000 - (56,000,000) 87,000,000
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Remuneration Report {audited) - conTinuED
Other information - CONTINUED
Shares held by Key Management Personnel

The number of ordinary shares in the Company during the 2024 reporting period held by each of the
Group's Key Management Personnel, including their related parties, is set out below:

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

PERSONNEL BALANCE AT PURCHASED GRANTED AS  RECEIVED ON RECEIVED ON DISPOSALS HELD AT THE
START OF REMUNMERATION  CONVERSION EXERCISE OF END OF
YEAR OF RIGHTS OPTIONS REPORTING
PERIOD
Mr Richard Grellman 1,020,408 4,000 - - - - 1,024,408
Mr Glenn Cooper - - = . -
Ms Shannon - . ) )
Enhingnn
Ms Nancy Milne 1,182,000 - - - - - 1,182,000
Mr Michael Pivac 152,589,371 - - - - " | 152,589,371
Mr Mark Pivac 358,205,167 - - . - " | 358,205,167
Mr Jonathan Lawe 6,008,200 - - | 3,080,000 - | (4,500,000) 4,588,200
Davies
Mr Kiel Chivers 5,804,000 - - | 3,850,000 - | (9,500,000) 154,000
Mr Aidan Flynn 5,744,000 - | 3,850,000 - | (9,594,000}
(ex KMP)
Mr Grant Anderson 1,250,000 o - - 1,250,000
[ex KMP) i i
Mr Greg Smith 205,000 - - - 205,000
(ex KMP} : :
Total 532,008,146 4,000 - | 10,780,000 - | (23,594,000) @ 519,198,146

Loan Funded Shares held by Key Management Personnel

During a prior year, on 24 December 2020, the Company issued 50,000,000 Loan Funded incentive
shares to the Executive Directors following approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 26 November 2020. The Loan Funded incentive shares were provided under a limited
recourse, interest free loan.

The incentive loan period in respect of 50,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares expired during the period
and the shares were subsequently sold by the Company to a third party investor shortly after balance

date. The executive directors did not receive any proceeds or benefit from the sale.

During a prior year, on 28 December 2022, the Company issued 100,000,000 Loan Funded incentive
shares to the Executive Directors following approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 28 November 2022. The Loan Funded incentive shares were provided under a limited
recourse, interest free loan. For each Executive Director, half of the loan, which pertains to
25,000,000 shares is repayable within 12 months and half of the loan, which pertains to the other
25,000,000 shares is repayable within 36 months.

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 28 November 2023, the Company extended the term by
12 months of 50,000,000 of the fully paid ordinary shares issued as loan funded shares to the two
Executive Directors.
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Remuneration Report (audited) - contivueD

The number of Loan Funded Shares held in the Company during the 2024 reporting period held by
each of the Company’s Key Management Personnel, including their related parties, is set out below:

Loan Funded Shares held by Key Management Personnel {continued)
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

PERSONMEL BALAMCE AT GRANTED AS REPAID DURING EXPIRY HELD AT THE END
START OF YEAR  REMUNERATION THE YEAR OF REPORTING

PERIOD

Mr Michael Pivac 75,000,000 - - - 75,000,000
Mr Mark Pivac 75,000,000 - - - 75,000,000

Mr Rowan Caren - - - - -

Mr lonathan Lawe - - - 2 .
Davies
Mr Kiel Chivers = - - = o

>\T‘Ir Aidan Flynn [ex KMP)
otal 150,000,000 - - - 150,000,000

-

O Performance Rights held by Key Management Personnel

The number of Performance Rights held in the Company during the 2024 reporting period held by
U) each of the Company’s Key Management Personnel, including their related parties, is set out below:

>

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

cﬁ PERSONMEL BALANCE AT START GRANTED AS EXERCISED DURING CANCELLED HELD AT THE END
OFYEAR  REMUMERATION THE YEAR OF REPORTING
C PERIOD
O Mr Michael Pivac - - - - -
o Mr Mark Pivac - - - - -
G) Mr Rowan Caren - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr Jonathan Lawe 11,080,000 10,000,000 (3,080,000) - 18,000,000

avies
S Mr Kiel Chivers 13,850,000 10,000,000 (3,850,000) - 20,000,000
I I Mr Aidan Flynn [Ex KMP) 13,850,000 - (3,850,000) (2,500,000) - 7,500,000
Total 38,780,000 30,000,000 | (10,780,000} (2,500,000) - 55,500,000

Other transactions with Key Management Personnel

DIRECTOR LOAN AGREEMENT

During prior periods the Company paid $190,000 as an unsecured interest bearing loan to Mark Pivac
in relation to tax payments relating to Performance Rights issued under the Company’s Performance
Rights Plan. The amount {plus $114,271 interest) remains outstanding at 30 June 2024.

The loan has a maturity date of 31 December 2024 and an interest rate at the higher of 4.52% per
annum and the highest rate of interest payahle by the Company to any financier of the Company at

the relevant time.
GUARANTEES
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related parties.

End of audited Remuneration Report

FBR LIMITED
2024 ANNUAL REPORT @ I 45



For personal use only

Environmental legislation

FBR is required to carry out its activities in accordance with the laws and regulations in the areas in
which it undertakes its activities. There have been no known significant breaches of these laws and
regulations.

Indemnities given to, and insurance premiums paid for directors and officers
Insurance of officers

During the year, FBR paid a premium to insure officers of the Company. The officers of the Company

covered by the insurance policy include all Directors.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings
that may be brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of the Company, and any other
payments arising from liabilities incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings, other
than where such liabilities arise out of conduct involving a wilful breach of duty by the officers or the
improper use by the officers of their position or of information to gain advantage for themselves or
someone else to cause detriment to the Company.

Details of the amount of the premium paid in respect of insurance policies are not disclosed as such
disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the contract.

The Company has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, except to the extent
permitted by law, indemnified or agreed to indemnify any current or former officer of the Company
against a liability incurred as such by an officer.

Mon-audit services

During the year, Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd, the Company’s auditors, did not perform any other
services in addition to their statutory audit duties.

Details of the amounts paid to the auditors of the Company, Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd, for audit
services provided during the year are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

A copy of the Auditor’s Independence Declaration as required under 5307C of the Corporations Act
2001 is included on page 27 of this financial report and forms part of this Directors’ Report.
Proceedings on behalf of the Company

Mo person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to
bring proceedings on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the
Company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or part
of those proceedings.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors

Michael Pivac
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

23 September 2024
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o Grant Thornton

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
Level 43 Central Park

152-153 5t Georges Terrace
Parth W 6000

PO Bax 7757

Cloisters Square

Pearth WA 6850

T +51 8 9480 2000

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
To the Directors of FBR Ltd

In accordance with the requirements of section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, as lead auditor for the audit
of FBR Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2024, | declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have
been:

a no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and

b no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

C); “nl' /Ihufﬁl'an

GRANT THORNTOMN AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

L A Stella
Fartner — Audit & Assurance

Perth, 23 September 2024

www.grantthornton.com.au
ACN-130 813 584

Grant Thornton Awdit Fty Ltd ACN 130 813 584 a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thomion Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 ACH 127 556 389,
‘Grant Thomton' refers to the brand undar which the Grant Thomion member firms provide asswance, tax and advisory services 1o their cients andior
refiers to one or more member fms, as the contexd requires. Grant Thomton Austalia Limited is a member firm of Grant Thomiton Intemational Lid (GTIL).
GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is & separate legal enfity, Services are delivened by the member
firms. GTIL doas not provide services to clients. GTIL and #s member fimms ane not agents of and do not obligate one another and are not lisble for one
another's acts or omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the term "Grant Thomton’ may refer to Grant Thomion Australia Limited ABN 41 127
556 385 ACN 127 556 389 and its Australian subsidiaries and related enliSes. Liability Bmited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Continuing operations
Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Interest income

Research & Development (RED) tax incentive
Other income

Professional services

Directors’ and employees’ benefits
Development costs

Share-based payments

Depreciation

Finance costs

Amortisation of development costs
Impairment Expense

Inventory impairment reversal/|expense)
Other expenses

Loss befare tax
Income tax expense
Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive loss for the period

Basic loss per share in cents per share

Diluted loss per share in cents per share

Notes 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
(Restated - refer Note 33)
$ $

7 836,711 1,662,676
(648,229) (3,288,647)
188,482 (1,625,971}
326,439 283,725
5,211,506 4,634,071
B8 1,599,834 92,376
9.a (2,684,880) (1,082,433)
5.b (13,663,629) (12,742,252)
(1,871,711) (1,354,435)
24 (4,683,011) (5,274,924)
16,17 (2,085,408) (1,829,453)
(1,369,253) {772,784}
18 (2,995,292) (2,918,025)
16 (1,329,538) -
12 72,702 {199,647}
9.c (4,485,678) (3,862,730)
(27,773,437) {26,652,562)
(27,773,437) (26,652,562)
(27,773,437) (26,652,562)

26 068 0.21

26 0.68 0.81

Mote: This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

48 @8 S83 AL reposT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

For personal use only

As at 30 June 2024
MNotes 30 June 2024 30 June 2023 1 July 2022
{Restated — refer (Restated — refer
Note 33) Note 33)
$ $ $

Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 11 3,742,280 12,397,405 10,686,594
Trade and other receivables 13 6,599,026 9,566,644 1,370,489
Inventory 12 3,318,163 1,154,236 6,470,410
Other current assets 14 3,316,623 1,592,509 1,545,529
Current assets 16,976,092 24,710,794 20,073,022
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment 16 13,978,290 10,936,535 4,669,838
Right-of-use assets 17 1,502,675 2,248,201 1,907,332
Development costs 18 42,500,340 43,975,242 45,727,253
MNon-current assets 57,981,305 57,159,978 52,304,423
Total assets 74,957,397 81,870,772 72,377,445
Liabilities
Current
Trade and other payables 19 3,483,268 2,853,631 3,551,123
Pravisions 20 1,801,852 2,539,926 754,846
Lease liabilities 21 1,281,848 1,397,658 1,220,117
Loans & borrowings 22 6,371,651 5,227,083 5,740,033
Current liabilities 12,938,619 12,118,308 11,266,119
Non-current
Provisions 20 426,108 278,833 573,506
Lease liabilities 21 270,094 869,942 716,723
Loans & borrowings 22 280,493 1,820,302 2,514,138
MNon-current liabilities 976,695 2,969,077 3,804,767
Total liabilities 13,915,314 15,087,385 15,070,886
Met assets 61,042,083 66,783,387 57,306,559
Equity
Share capital 23 168,411,855 148,845,254 116,567,987
Reserves 25 6,854,175 5,802,820 3,496,596
Accumulated losses (114,223,947) (87,864,687) (62,758,024)
Total equity 61,042,083 66,783,387 57,306,559

Mote: This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Balance at 1 July 2023
Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the period

Transactions with owners:

Shares issued — capital raising (refer to Note 23)

Capital raising costs — (refer to Note 23)

Performance rights converted to shares [refer to

Mote 24)

Performance rights forfeited (refer to Note 25)

Performance rights cancelled (refer to Note 25}

Performance rights lapsed (refer to Note 25)

Performance rights issued to employees

(refer to Note 25)

Options issued to employees and directors

[refer to Note 25)

Options lapsed or passed up (refer to Note 25)

Balance at 30 June 2024

PERFORMANCE  SHARE
SHARE RIGHT OPTION  ACCUMULATED TOTAL
CAPITAL RESERVE RESERVE LOSSES EQUITY
5 s 5 5 5

148,845,254 3,536,801 2,266,019 (87,864,687) 66,783,387
- - - (27,773,437} (27,773,437)
- - - (27,773,437) (27,773,437)
18,792,035 - - - 18,792,035
(1,442,914) - - - {1,442,914)
2,217,480 (2,217,480) - - -
{94,925} 54,925 -
- (85,000) - 45,000 -
(526,626) 526,626 -
3,018,515 3,018,515
- - 1,664,497 - 1,664,497
- - (697,626) 697,626 -
168,411,855 3,621,285 3,232,890 (114,223,947) 61,042,083

MNote: This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Balance at 1 July 2022

Prior pericd error (note 33}
Balance at 1 July 2022 restated
Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the period

Transactions with owners:
Shares issued — capital raising (refer to Note 23)
Capital raising costs (refer to Note 23)

Performance rights converted to shares (refer to
Mote 24)

Performance rights forfeited (refer to Note 25)
Performance rights expired (refer to Note 25)

Performance rights issued to employees and
directors (refer to Note 25)

Options issued to employees and directors (refer
to Note 25)

Options expired (refer to Note 25)
Options exercised (refer to Note 25)

Balance at 30 June 2023

Balance at 30 June 2023
Prior period error (note 33)

Balance at 1 July 2023 restated

Note: This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

PERFORMANCE  SHARE
SHARE RIGHT OPTION  ACCUMULATED TOTAL
CAPITAL RESERVE RESERVE LOSSES EQUITY
5 5 s 5 5
116,567,987 1,998,671 1,497,925 (61,799,181) 58,265,402
{958,843}  (958,843)
116,567,987 1,998,671 1,497,925 (62,758,024] 57,306,559
- - - (26,652,562) (26,652,562)
- - - (26,652,562) (26,652,562)
31,070,628 31,070,628
(1,476,162) - - - (1,476,162)
1,079,060 (1,079,060} - - -
- (78,277} - 78,277 -
- (317,622} - 317,622 -
3,013,090 3,013,090
- - 2,261,834 - 2,261,834
(1,150,000) 1,150,000 -
1,603,740 - (343,740) - 1,260,000
148,845,253 3,536,802 2,266,019 (87,864,687) 66,783,387
148,845 253 3,536,802 2,266,019 (83,139,478) 71,508,596
(4,725,200) (4,725,209)
148,845,253 3,536,802 2,266,019 (87,864,687) 66,783,387
FBR LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Operating activities

Interest received

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees
R&D tax incentive received

Interest paid

Government Grants

MNet cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Development costs

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from the settlement of other financial assets

RE&D tax incentive received

MNet cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital

Capital raising costs

Proceeds from loans

Repayment of loans

Transaction costs related to loans and borrowings

Net cash provided by financing activities

MNet change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Notes

23

11

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

(Restated)

$ $
286,020 241,241
2,418,245 1,987,026
(27,914,536) (22,379,071)
4,634,071 2,886,002
(1,122,738} (599,291)
73,200 73,200
{21,625,738) (17,790,893)
(2,295,950) (1,915,700)
(5,546,622) (10,936,488)
(25,792) (172,687)
4,134,180 2,994 368
(3,734,184) {10,034,507)
18,792,035 32,330,628
(1,442,914) (1,601,162)
9,341,551 4,292, 652
(9,758,901) (5,485,907)
(226,974} -
16,704,797 29,536,211
(8,655,125) 1,710,811
12,397,405 10,686,594
3,742,280 12,397,405

Mote: This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. MNature of operations

FBR Ltd (the Company) and its controlled subsidiaries (the Group) designs, develops and builds
dynamically stabilised robots to address global needs. These robots are designed to work outdoors
using the Company’s core Dynamic Stabilisation Technology® (D5T®). The first application of DST® is
the Hadrian X®, a bricklaying robot that builds structural walls faster, safer, more accurately and
with less wastage than traditional manual methods. The Hadrian X® provides Wall as a Service®,
FBR's unique commercial offering, to builders on demand. The Company has secured patents to
protect its intellectual property in its technology in key markets.

2. General information and statement of compliance

The consolidated general purpose financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards
and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards results in full compliance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{IASB). FBR is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

FBR is the Group’s Ultimate Parent Company. FBR is a Public Company incorporated and domiciled
in Australia. The address of its registered office and its principal place of business is 122 Sultana
Road West, High Wycombe WA 6057.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024 have been approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors.

3. Going concern

The Consolidated Financial Report has been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates
the continuity of normal business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Group incurred a net loss of $27,773,437 during the year ended 30 June 2024, and the Group's
net cash outflows from operating and investing activities totalled 525,359,922 for the year. The
ability for the Group to continue as a going concern and to fund its ongoing Hadrian X programme is
dependent upon the Group successfully raising additional capital, sales of residential property
inventory, continued payments from CRH pursuant to the US joint venture option, proceeds from
the sale of Hadrian X machines to the FBR/CRH US joint venture, and continuing to be eligible for

receipt of government R&D tax incentives.

The Group held cash and cash equivalents at balance date of 53,742,280 and was working capital
positive. The Group has receivables of $6,599,026 at balance date. The Group has prepared a cash
flow forecast for the next 12 months which demonstrates that with further equity raisings, sales of
residential property inventory, continued payments from CRH pursuant to the US joint venture
option, proceeds from the sale of Hadrian X machines to the FBR/CRH US joint venture, continued
access to the R&D tax incentive program and the existing cash reserves and receivables, there is the
necessary working capital for the Group to continue its ongoing Hadrian X programme and to
provide the necessary working capital to cover its corporate costs over the next year.

FBRLIMITED
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3. Going concern (continued)

Whilst the Directors are confident of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, due to the
factors mentioned above, there is material uncertainty that may cast doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If the Group is unable to continue as a going concern, it may be
required to realise its assets and or settle its liabilities other than in the ordinary course of business
and at amounts different from those stated in the financial report.

4. Changes in accounting policies

A. MNew and revised standards that are effective for these financial statements

In the financial year ended 30 June 2024, the Group has reviewed all of the new and revised
Standards and Interpretations issued by the AASB that are relevant to its operations and effective

for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2023,

The Group has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) that
are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual reporting period. The adoption of
those standards does not have a significant impact on the amounts reported for the current and

prior period.

B. Accounting Standards issued but not yet effective and not been adopted early by the Group

There are no new standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on the group in the current or future reporting periods and on

foreseeable future transactions.

Other Standards and Amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the

Group include:

*  AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosure of Accounting
Policies and Definition of Accounting Estimates

*  AASB 2021-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the new standards with no material
impact expected.

5. Summary of material accounting policies

A, Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as of 30

June 2024. The Company controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the subsidiary. All subsidiaries have a reporting date of 30 June and the functional and presentation
currency of the Group is Australia Dollars.
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5.  Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

All transactions and balances between FBR companies are eliminated on consolidation, including
unrealised gains and losses on transactions between FBR companies. Where unrealised losses on
intra-Company asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from a Group perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as
applicable.

B. Revenue
Wall-as-a-Service (Waa5) and Construction Services revenue
To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. ldentifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

The transaction price is the fair value of consideration received or receivable net of goods and
services tax (GST).

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the promised services to its customers. For Waa5s &
Construction Services, revenue is recognised over time as services are delivered to the customer, as
the customer benefits from the service as it is delivered and the Group has a right to payment
appropriate to the level of effort expended upon cancellation of any arrangements. For house and
land property sales, revenue is recognised at a point in time which is when the cash settlement of
the sale of the property occurs. The Group recognises contract liabilities for consideration received
in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these amounts as contract liabilities in
the statement of financial position. Similarly, if the Group satisfies a performance obligation before
it receives the consideration, the Group recognises either a contract asset or a receivable in its
statement of financial position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is
required before the consideration is due.

Interest and dividend income

Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
Dividends, other than those from investments in associates, are recognised at the time the right to
receive payment is established.
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5.  Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are treated as income and are reported on an accrual basis and recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
the grants will be received.

C. Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or at the date of
their origin.

D. Leased assets

The Group considers whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset {the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which
are whether:

* the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or

implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group.

s the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of

the contract.

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use
asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement
date (net of any incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is
readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
{(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to
be exercised.
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5.  Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased
for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changesin
in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment
is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to
zero. The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments
in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been disclosed in non-current assets

and lease liabilities have been disclosed in current and non-current liabilities.

E. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash within three
(3) months or less at inception of the deposit and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

F. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses
directly attributable to the building process as well as suitable portions of related production
overheads, based on normal operating capacity. Costs of ordinarily interchangeable items are
assigned using the first in, first out cost formula. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expenses.

G. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Equipment

All plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Asset Class Method Useful Lives
Plant and equipment Straight Line 2-10 years
Furniture and fittings Straight Line 2-10 years

Information and communication

Straight Line 2-5 years
technology (ICT) equipment 'ght L ¥

Leasehold improvements Straight Line 2-4 years
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5.  Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss.

H. Research and development, intangibles and intellectual property

Research costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Patents costs that relate to
projects that are in the research phase are expensed.

Development costs are capitalised when it is probable that the project will be a success considering
its commercial and technical feasibility; the consolidated entity is able to use or sell the asset; the
consolidated entity has sufficient resources; and intent to complete the development and its costs
can be measured reliably. Capitalised development costs are amortised over the period of their
expected useful life, when the asset is determined available for use. Patents costs that relate to
projects that are in the development phase are capitalised. Research and development grants
receivable are matched to their classification of expenditure. In the periods where research costs are
expensed, the related research and development grant is reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as other income. In periods where the Group incurs
Development Costs, the related Research and Development grant is recognised as a credit to
capitalised development costs, reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The carrying value of development expenditure, intangible assets and intellectual property is tested
for impairment annually when the asset is not yet available for use or more frequently when an

indication of impairment arises during the reporting period.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the capitalised development carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use. To determine the recoverable amount, management have used fair value less costs of
disposal.

When intangible assets are assessed as being ready for use, they are assessed for impairment in
accordance with Note 5(1).

L. Impairment testing of non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested

individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

All individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. To determine the fair value less costs of disposal, management utilises an
internal cost approach model of replacement cost. The replacement cost approach is a valuation
technigue that reflects the amount that would be required to replace the asset.
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5. Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment |losses for cash-generating units are charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit to the extent that the value of the asset exceeds its fair value. All assets are
subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no
longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-generating unit’'s recoverable amount

exceeds its carrying amount.
J. Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred.
A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance with AASB 15, all financial assets are initially

measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable).

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments, are classified
into the following categories:

* amortised cost
# fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)

¢ fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVOCI).

In the periods presented the corporation does not have any financial assets categorised as FVOCI.
The classification is determined by both:
* the entity’'s business model for managing the financial asset

s the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Allincome and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are
presented within finance costs, finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of

trade receivables which is presented within other expenses.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL):

# they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and

collect its contractual cash flows

» the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
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5.  Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group's cash and cash
equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

AASB 9's impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognise expected
credit losses — the 'expected credit loss (ECL) model'.

Recognition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the Group first identifying a credit loss event.
Instead the Group considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and
measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and
supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the

instrument.
In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:

» financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial

recognition or that have low credit risk (‘Stage 1') and

» financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial

recognition and whose credit risk is not low ('Stage 27).

‘Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date.

"12-month expected credit losses” are recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime expected
credit losses” are recognised for the second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

K. Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current incorme tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims from, the
Australian Taxation Office (ATO) and other fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
periods that are unpaid at the reporting date. Current tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs
from profit or loss in the financial statements. Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. However, deferred tax is not
provided on the initial recognition of goodwill or on the initial recognition of an asset or liability
unless the related transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Deferred
tax on temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures is not
provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Group and it is probable
that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future.
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5. Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected
to apply to their respective period of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be able to be
utilised against future taxable income, based on the Group's forecast of future operating results
which is adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits to the use of
any unused tax loss or credit. Deferred tax liabilities are always provided for in full.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when the Group has a right and intention to set off
current tax assets and liabilities from the same taxation authority.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or expense
in profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income (such as the revaluation of land) or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

FBR and all its wholly owned Australian controlled entities are a tax consolidated group. As a
consequence, these entities are taxed as a single entity and the deferred tax assets and liahilities of
these entities are to be set off in the consolidated financial statements.

L. Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Share capital represents the fair value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share capital, net of any related income tax
benefits.

Other components of equity include the following:
* Share options reserve comprises the expense of vested option payments.

*» Performance rights reserve comprises the expense of vested performance rights payments.

* Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits.

All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.
M. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are benefits, other than termination benefits, that are expected to be
settled wholly within twelve (12) months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service. Examples of such benefits include wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits
and accumulating personal leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amounts expected to be paid when the liahilities are settled.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s liabilities for long service leave are included in other long term benefits as they are not
expected to be settled wholly within twelve (12) months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are measured at the present value of the expected
future payments to be made to employees.
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5. Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

The expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and periods of service, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates that approximate the timing of the estimated future cash outflows. Any re-measurements
arising from experience adjustments and changes in assumptions are recognised in profit or loss in

the periods in which the changes occur.

The Group presents employee benefit obligations as current liabilities in the statement of financial
position if the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve
{12) months after the reporting period, irrespective of when the actual settlement is expected to

take place.

N. Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in

equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum, an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
recipient, as measured at the date of modification.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options or share performance rights is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of diluted loss per share.
0. Significant management judgement and estimates in applying accounting policies

When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgements,
estimates and assumptions about recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The actual results may differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions made by
management, and will seldom equal the estimated results.

Additional significant estimates and judgements include:

Share-based payment transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value of the options
issued during the reporting period has been determined by using various models as appropriate.
Details of the estimates used to determine the fair value are detailed in Note 24.
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5. Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
Capitalised development costs

Distinguishing the research and development phases of the project and determining whether the
recognition requirements phases of the project and determining whether the recognition
requirements for the capitalisation of development costs are met requires judgement. After
capitalisation, management monitors whether recognition requirements continue to be met and

whether there are any indicators that capitalised costs may be impaired.

An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
its fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. Management has subjected the Group's
capitalised Development costs {Note 18) to impairment testing. Management reviews its carrying
value of capitalised development and intellectual property annually by comparing the carrying value
against fair value less costs of disposal using an internal cost approach model of replacement cost.
The replacement cost approach is a valuation technique that reflects the amount that would be
required to replace the asset. This replacement amount exceeded the carrying value of the assets of
the CGU.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological
obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and IT equipment.

Useful lives of amortisable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of amortizable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. During the period the group’s development asset was
assessed as being ready for use. Once an asset is ready for use it is required to determine its
expected useful life. Given the industry the group is seeking to disrupt and the relative uniqueness of
the group’s Hadrian asset uncertainty is involved in establishing this position. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to the availability, protectability and applicability of the group patent portfolio,
expected Hadrian machine lifetimes, comparahble and competing industry technology and typical
technology commercialisation cycles.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the
probability that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax loss carry-forwards can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required
in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.
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6.

Segment reporting

The Group has identified one operating segment based on the internal reports that are reviewed

and used by the executive management team (the chief operating decision makers) in assessing

performance and in determining the allocation of resources.

The Group operates in Australia (building technology) and prepares reports internally by this
location.

Other prospective opportunities cutside of this geographical location are also considered from time
to time, and if they are secured, will then be attributed to the geographical location where they are

located. All of the Group’s non-current assets are held in Australia and all interest revenue is derived

from funds invested in short-term money market instruments, all of which are held within Australia.

7.

Revenue

Wall as a Service and Construction Services sales
Residential housing sales

Timing of revenue recognition is as follows:
Revenue recognised at a point in time
Revenue recognised over time

Other Income

Government grants
CRH Fee
Other
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Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ $
272,347 214,080
564,364 1,448,596
836,711 1,662,676

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

$ $

564,364 1,448,596
272,347 214,080
836,711 1,662,676

Consolidated

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ $
73,200 85,200
1,522,024 -
4,610 7,178
1,599,834 92,376
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Expenses

Professional services

Legal costs

Marketing

Accountancy, audit and tax
Corporate consultants

Directors’ and employees’ benefits

Wages, salaries and directors’ fees
Superannuation

Annual leave entitlements

Long service leave entitlements

Capitalised to Hadrian development costs
Capitalised to Hadrian WIP

Capitalised to Shuttle system development costs

Other expenses

Insurance

Travel expenses

Compliance costs
Subscriptions

Staff training costs

Intellectual property expenses
Employee oncosts
Recruitment costs

Other administration expenses

Consolidated
30 June 2024

30 June 2023

$ $
1,821,776 235,785
37,170 67,850
463,792 502,956
362,142 275,842
2,684,880 1,082,433
Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
S S
15,676,580 14,717,047
1,646,503 1,411,161
234,450 257,126
162,394 190,842
(169,895) (171,895)
(3,564,219) (3,240,008)
(322,224) (421,981)
13,663,629 12,742,292
Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ $
422,932 308,676
778,072 445,301
242,026 232,102
392,248 270,720
32,226 41,198
302,663 279,950
1,062,230 956,470
13,665 23,602
1,235,566 1,304,711
4,485,678 3,862,730
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10. Income tax expense

The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on
the domestic effective tax rate of FBR Ltd at 25% (2023: 25%) and the reported tax expense in profit

or loss are as follows:

Loss from continuing operations before income tax expense

- Prima facie tax benefit on loss from ordinary activities before
income tax at 25% (2023: 25%)

Add/(less) tax effect of:

- Non-deductible items - Entertainment

- Non-deductible items - Share/Option Based Payments expensed
- Permanent differences relating to R&D costs

- Costs recognised in equity

- Prior year unders and overs

- Dther

- Movement in temporary differences not recognised

Income tax expense
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30 June 2024 30 June 2023

(Restated)
$ $

(27,773,437)  (26,652,562)
(6,943,359) (6,663,141)
2,474 6,874
1,170,752 1,318,731
2,102,213 3,625,859
(360,729) 119,055
(31,517) -
565 (34,057)
4,059,600 1,626,678
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10. Income tax expense (continued)

Deferred tax assets (“"DTA") and liabilities (“DTL")
recognised relate to the following:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
(Restated)
$ $
DTA
Tax losses & non-refundable offsets (Group) - Note
10b 18,704,831 15,604,954
Other temporary differences (DTA closing balance)
Patent Costs 111,398 43,846
Domain registrations 340 510
In-house software (27,323) 28,030
Accruals & other payables 15,500 139,213
Finance lease liability 387,986 566,900
Frovisions 556,990 704,690
Capital Raising Costs through equity 1,063,267 497,884
Borrowing Costs 20,136 26,872
Website development costs 1,010 3,511
Cash assets (9,415) (65,927)
Inventory 18,176 218,573
DTL
Other temporary differences (DTL closing balance)
Trade receivables (20,315) {21,983)
Prepayments (9,329) {146,877)
Investment in Hadrian (6,431,948) (7,242,153)
Right of Use assets (375,669) {562,050)
Property, plant & equipment (2,552,260) (2,522,600)
MNet deferred tax asset not recognised at 25% - Note
11,453,375 7,332,393

10a & 10b

Note 10a: The net deferred tax asset in 2024, not recognised is at a 25% tax rate, being FBR's

actual tax rate for the 2024 year. FBR is classified as a small business entity and base rate entity
for the year ended 30 June 2024. The income tax rate for base rate entities for the year ended 30

June 2024 is 25% (2023: 25%).

Note 10b: The deferred tax asset at 25% which is attributable to tax losses carried forward at 30

June 2024 is $18,704,831 (2023: 515,604,954 at 25% rate).

As the deferred tax asset exceeds the deferred tax liability at 30 June 2024, FER has partially

offset the deferred tax asset against the deferred tax liability and not recognised the net deferred
tax asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and profit and loss.
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11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:

Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
S $
Cash at bank and on deposit 3,742,280 12,397,405
12. Inventories
Inventories include the following components:
Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
S $
Inventory — land & residential 790,158 1,353,883
Inventory — parts 2,258,093 -
Inventory — in progress 197,210 -
Inventory impairment reversal/(expense) 72,702 (199,647)
Carrying Amount at 30 June 3,318,163 1,154,236

Inventories have been increased by 572,702 (2023: decrease of $199,647) as a result of the write-up to
net realisable value.

13. Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables consist of the following:

Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023

S S

Research and Development tax rebate 5,924,855 8,768,251
Construction services 6,491 -
GST receivable 282,084 378,011
Interest receivable 8,062 14,733
Director loans (note 29) 304,271 257,182
Grants receivable 73,200 73,200
Other receivables 63 75,267

6,599,026 9,566,644

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair
value as this financial asset (which is measured at amortised cost) is expected to be settled within six
(6) months.

All of the Group's trade and other receivables that are not financial assets have been reviewed for

indicators of impairment with none being noted.
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14.

Other current assets

Other current assets consist of the following:

15.

A.

Prepayments
Bank guarantees
Other

Financial assets and liabilities

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ $
1,757,872 587,508
1,030,792 1,005,000
527,959 -
3,316,623 1,592,509

Note 5(j) provides a description of each category of financial assets and financial liabilities and the
related accounting policies.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities in each category are as follows:

30 June 2024

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Research and Development tax rebate

Bank guarantees

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Chattel mortgage equipment loan facility
Construction loan facility

Hadrian lease finance facility

Research & development tax refund loan

Notes

11

19
21

22
22
22

Financial assets/liabilities

at amortised cost Total

S S
3,742,280 3,742,280
392,087 392,087
5,924,855 5,924,855
1,030,792 1,030,792
11,090,014 11,090,014
3,483,268 3,483,268
1,551,942 1,551,942
466,178 466,178
523,828 523,828
1,359,220 1,359,220
4,302,917 4,302,917
11,687,353 11,687,353
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15.

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets/liabilities
Notes at amortised cost Total
S

30 June 2023
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 12,397,405 12,397,405
Trade and other receivables 420,382 420,382
Research and Development tax rebate 8,768,251 8,768,251
Bank guarantees 1,005,000 1,005,000

22,591,038 22,591,038
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 2,953,631 2,953,631
Lease liabilities 21 2,267,600 2,267,600
Chattel mortgage equipment loan facility 642,274 642,274
Construction loan facility 22 583,974 583,974
Hadrian lease finance facility 22 1,821,148 1,821,148
Research & development tax refund loan 22 4,000,000 4,000,000

12,268,627 12,268,627

The methods used to measure financial assets and liabilities reported at fair value are described in

MNote

32,

Other financial instruments

The carrying amount of the following financial assets and liabilities is considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value:

cash and cash equivalents;
trade and other receivables:
other assets;

trade and other payables;
lease payables; and

loans.
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16. Property, plant and equipment

Details of the Group's property, plant and equipment and their carrying amount are as follows:

30 June 2024
PLANT & FURNITURE & ICT EQUIPMENT HADRIAN
EQUIPMENT FITTINGS WORK IN
PROGRESS TOTAL
] $ $ $ $
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2023 4,240,070 1,081,542 2,284,534 7,796,767 15,502,913
Additions 234,717 14,707 88,708 7,527,530 7.B65,662
Transfer to Inventory - [2,455301) (2,455,301)
R&D tax incentive - - - (435,301) (435,301)
Disposals (5,500) (1,144) {951,990) (958,634)
>:a lance at 30 June 2024 4,569,287 1,095,105 1,421,252 12,433,695 19,519,339
C Depreciation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2023 (1,436,427) (966,975) [2,162,975) - (4,566,377)
CD Disposals 5,500 - 951,194 - 956,694
U) Depreciation (524,436) {28,765) (48,628) (601,825)
3 Impairment! - - - [1,329,537) {1,329,537)
C—G Balance at 30 June 2024 (1,955,365) (995,740) (1,260,408) (1,329,537 (5,541,049)
. Carrying amount at 30 June 2,613,922 99,365 160,843 11,104,158 13,978,290

2024

1. Hodrian work in progress hos been impaired by 51,329,537 (2023: Nil) due ta the existence of on impoirment indicator as the cost of the

assel exceeds the value to which it can be sold for in the open maorket. As such on impairment expense was recognized in the current period.
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16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

30 June 2023 (Restated — refer to note 33)

PLANT & FURNITURE & ICT EQUIPMENT HADRIAN
EQUIPMENT FITTINGS WORK IN
PROGRESS TOTAL
] 5 5 5 5
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2022 3,729,514 1,028,360 2,228,759 1,676,211 8,662,844
Additions 613,738 53,182 55,776 9,984,707 10,707,403
R&D tax incentive - - (3,864,152} (3,864,152)
Disposals {3,182} - . (3,182}
Balance at 30 June 2023 4,340,070 1,081,542 2,284,535 7,796,766 15,502,913
Depreciation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2022 (992,592) (938,957) (2,061,457} {3,993,006)
Disposals 2,757 2,757
Depreciation® (446,592) (28,019) (101,518) (576,129)
Impairment -
Balance at 30 June 2023 (1,426,427) (966,976) (2,162,974) - (4,566,378)
::;r;mg amount at 30 June 2,903,643 114,566 121,560 7,796,766 10,936,535
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17. Right-of-use assets

The following table below shows the net carrying amount of the right-of-use assets:

30 June 2024

Carrying amount at 1 July 2023
Additions

Adjustment from lease remeasurement
Depreciation

Carrying amount at 30 June 2024

30 June 2023

yse only

arrying amount at 1 July 2022
Lease modification

cd)ep reciation’

CCarw'lng amount at 30 June 2023

expires 30 June 2025.

2025,

For perso

Land & Buildings ICT Total
5 Equipment
$ $
2,247,695 506 2,248,201
422,534 422,534
287,535 - 287,535
(1,384,669) (70,926) (1,455,595)
1,150,561 352,114 1,502,675
Land & Buildings ICT Total
5 Equipment
s $
1,837,646 19,686 1,907,332
1,594,233 - 1,554,233
(1,234,184) (19,180) (1,253,364)
2,247,695 506 2,248,201

As at 30 June 2024, the group operates leases in respect of an office, workshop and ICT equipment.

The lease contract for the head office and workshop has a non-cancellable term of (12) months and

The lease contract for the second office has a non-cancellable term of {9) months and expires 4 April

With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is
reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease payments
which do not depend on an index or a rate (such as lease payments based on a percentage of Group
sales) are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and asset.
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18. Development costs

Development costs are capitalised when it is probable that the project will be a success considering its
commercial and technical feasibility, the consolidated entity is able to use or sell the asset, the
consolidated entity has sufficient resources and intent to complete the development and its costs can
be measured reliably. The Company currently has two development assets. One is not yet available for
use and accordingly is tested for impairment annually as required by AASB 136 Impairment of Assets,
The other development asset is available for use and is tested for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment. Once available for use, capitalised development costs are amortised over the
period of their expected life. Patent costs that relate to projects that are in the development phase are

capitalised.

The following tables show the movements in development costs associated with the Hadrian X and the
Shuttle system:

74

Hadrian X
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
(Restated — refer
to note 33)
$ $

Gross carrying amount 43,524,775 46,331,706
Additions 1,163,482 1,019,390
R&D tax incentives {273,597) (662,769)
Amortisation expense (2,723,536) (3,163,551)
41,691,124 43,524,775

Additions
Employee benefits 169,896 171,895
Patents and trademarks 993,586 847,495
Total additions 1,163,482 1,019,390

Shuttle System
30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Gross carrying amount 5 450,466 5 62,819
Additions 634,956 686,101
R&D tax incentives {276,206) (298,453)
809,216 450,467

Additions
Employee benefits 539,336 421,981
Materials 95,619 264,120
Total additions 634,956 686,101
Total Development costs 42,500,340 43,975,242

{rerj FBR LIMITED
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19. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables consist of the following:

Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023

$ $
Trade creditors 2,212,786 1,913,105
Accrued expenses 788,673 556,851
Other payables 481,809 483,675
3,483,268 2,953,631

All amounts are short-term. The carrying values of trade payables and other payables are
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

20. Provisions

The carrying amounts and movements in the provisions account are as follows:

Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023

$ S
Current
Employee entitlements — Annual leave 1,240,869 1,006,378
Employee entitlements — Long service leave 183,921 168,802
Onerous contracts 377,062 1,364,746

1,801,852 2,539,926
Non-current
Employee entitlements — Long service leave 426,108 278,833

426,108 278,823

The current portion of these liabilities represents the Group's obligations to its current and former
employees that are expected to be settled during the next financial year. Onerous contracts are in

relation to Wall as a Service contracts that were entered into and expected to be loss making.
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21. Lease Liabilities

Lease liahilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ $
Lease liabilities (current) 1,281,848 1,397,658
Lease liabilities (non-current) 270,094 869,942
1,551,942 2,267,600

The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments as at
30 June 2024 are as follows:
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21. Lease Liabilities {continued)

Within one  One to five More than Total
year years five years
$ s s $
30 June 2024
Lease payments 1,333,542 311,600 - 1,645,142
Finance expenses (51,694) (41,506) - (93,200)
Net present values 1,281,848 270,094 - 1,551,942

22. Borrowings
The carrying amounts in the loans and borrowings accounts are as follows:

Consolidated

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

$ $
Current
Chattel mortgage equipment loan facility’ 185,685 176,095
Construction loan facility? £23,829 583,974
R&D tax refund loan® 4,302,917 4,000,000
Hadrian lease finance facility® 1,359,220 467,024

6,371,651 5,227,093

Non-Current
Chattel mortgage equipment loan facility’ 280,493 466,178
Hadrian lease finance facility® - 1,354,124

280,493 1,820,302

* The chattel martgage equipment loan facility with HP Financial Services {Australia) Pty Ltd has a
first ranking security over the equipment and has an interest rate of 5.50% per annum. The facility
matures on 30 November 2026.

During a prior period FBR secured construction financing for robotically built housing to support
and grow FBR's construction operations using the Hadrian X® construction robot and the Fastbrick
Wall System®. FBR signed an agreement with FC Securities Pty Ltd for a 52 million revolving debt
facility to finance up to 67.5% of the land and construction cost of five homes FBR is building and has
completed in Wellard in Western Australia, plus any subsequent FBR residential builds within the 30-
month term of the facility (ending September 2024). The facility gives FC first ranking securities
comprising a mortgage over the Wellard properties and FBR's subsidiary Fastbrick Engineering Pty
Ltd. The facility has an interest rate on drawn funds of 9.00% per annum, a 2.25% setup fee, and a
3.00% line fee. The facility limit was voluntarily reduced to $0.5 million during the period.

*During a prior period FBR entered into a revolving R&D tax loan facility with FC Capital, in place
until 31 December 2024. The facility allows FBR to draw down on a monthly basis as needed, up to
90% of its presently earned R&D tax incentive rebates or $4.3 million, whichever is lower at the
time. The facility carries a one off 1.5% establishment fee and a 3.0% line fee per annum and placed
a General Security Agreement over FBR Ltd and Fastbrick Engineering Pty Ltd.
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22. Borrowings (continued)

It had an interest rate of 9.15% per annum plus the published one month bid rate for the Australian
Bank Bill Swap Reference Rate {BBSW) until March 2024 and then an interest rate of 8.15% per
annum plus BBSW.

*During a prior period FBR entered into a Lease Finance Facility with FC Capital to provide asset
finance for FBR’s two existing Hadrian X® construction robots at $1.15 million per Hadrian X®. The
finance facility has a three-year term and a 40% balloon payment at the end of the term, with a 2.0%
establishment fee and an interest rate of 12.0% per annum (until 31 August 2023) and 15.0% per
annum thereafter. The facility placed a General Security Agreement over FBR Ltd and Fastbrick
Engineering Pty Ltd.

23. Share capital

Ordinary shares

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ No. $ No.
Drdinarn,r shares, full'n_.r paid 168,411,855 4,441,949,977 148,845,254 3,668,898,314
Movement in ordinary shares on issue
Movement in ordinary shares on issue 5 No.
Shares on issue at 1 July 2023 148,845,254 3,668,898,314
Capital raising
16 October 2023 Placement (at $0.025 per share) 6,200,000 248,000,000

29 January 2024 Placement (at $0.027 per share) 12,592,035 466,371,663

Capital Raising Costs (1,442,914) -
Performance rights converted (19 July 2023) 1,394,680 23,080,000
Performance rights converted (27 July 2023) 666,138 28,962,500
Performance rights converted (24 October 2023) 137,712 5,987,500
Performance rights converted (12 May 2024) 3,450 150,000
Performance rights converted (24 June 2024) 15,500 500,000
Shares on issue at 30 June 2024 168,411,855 4.,441,949,977

On 19 July 2023, the company completed the issue of 23,080,000 fully paid ordinary shares upon the
exercise of unquoted performance rights that vested on achievement of performance milestones in

accordance with the company’s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

On 27 July 2023, the company completed the issue of 28,962,500 fully paid ordinary shares upon the
exercise of unquoted performance rights that vested on achievement of performance milestones in
accordance with the company’s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

On 16 October 2023, the company completed the issue of 248,000,000 fully paid ardinary shares to
new and existing institutional, sophisticated and strategic investors.
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23. Share capital (continued)

On 24 October 2023, the company completed the issue of 5,987,500 fully paid ordinary shares upon
the exercise of unquoted performance rights that vested on achievement of performance
milestones in accordance with the company’s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

On 29 January 2024, the company completed the issue of 466,371,663 fully paid ordinary shares to
new and existing institutional, sophisticated and strategic investors.

On 12 May 2024, the company completed the issue of 150,000 fully paid ordinary shares upon the
exercise of unquoted performance rights that vested on achievement of performance milestones in
accordance with the company’s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

On 24 June 2024, the company completed the issue of 500,000 fully paid ordinary shares upon the
exercise of unquoted performance rights that vested on achievement of performance milestones in
accordance with the company’s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

Loan Funded shares

On 28 December 2023, the incentive loan period for 25,000,000 of the long term loan funded shares
related to each Executive Director expired. These shares were previously issued to FBR's Executive
Directors, Michael Pivac and Mark Pivac, in 2020 as loan funded shares. The shares were
subsequently sold by the Company to a third party investor shortly after balance date. The executive
directors did not receive any proceeds or benefit from the sale.

On 28 December 2022, the Company issued a total of 100,000,000 new Loan Funded incentive
shares as a director loan to the Executive Directors following approval by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting on 28 Novermber 2022 (refer Note 29).

The following table illustrates the outstanding loan funded shares granted, repaid and forfeited
during the year.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Number Number
Outstanding at 1 July 150,000,000 100,000,000
Granted during the year - 100,000,000
Expired during the year - (50,000,000)
Loan Funded Shares at 30 June 150,000,000 150,000,000

Loan funded shares do not have a par value and for all intents and purposes are identical to ordinary
shares. Loan funded shares are eligible to receive dividends and repayment of capital. Loan funded
shares are entitled to vote at the shareholders’ meeting of FBR.

Subsequent to the year end, on 17 July 2024, 50,000,000 loan funded shares were sold to an
institutional investor. Full proceeds of the sale of these shares went directly and solely to FBR in part
repayment of the outstanding loans. The balance of the outstanding non cash loans was forgiven
under the terms of the loan funded share incentive plan.
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24. Share based payments

Ordinary shares

There were no ordinary shares granted as consideration for services provided to the Company

during the year.

Options

At the start of the period the Company had issued 56,000,000 unlisted incentive options to Key

Management Personnel with an expiry date of 31 December 2023 and an exercise price of 50.035.
These options expired unexercised during the period and the Company issued 87,000,000 unlisted
incentive options to Key Management Personnel with an expiry date of 31 December 2024 and an

exercise price of 50.026. No options were issued to directors during the period. There were no other

options issued by the Company during the year. The following table illustrates the outstanding
options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Number Weighted Number Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
(cents) (cents)
Cutstanding at 1 July 56,000,000 3.5 - -
Granted during the year 87,000,000 2.6 112,000,000 2.9
Converted during the year - - (56,000,000) 2.3
Expired during the year (56,000,000) 35 - -
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Outstanding as at 30 June 87,000,000 2.6 56,000,000 35
Performance rights
There were 136,000,000 performance rights issued during the current year (2023: 167,250,000). The
weighted average fair value of the performance rights granted during the current year is 50.026
(2023: 50.033). Performance rights do not have a par value. Performance rights are not eligible to
receive dividends or repayment of capital. Performance rights are not entitled to vote at the
shareholders’ meeting of FBR. The following table illustrates the outstanding performance rights
granted, exercised and forfeited during the year.
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Number Number
Cutstanding at 1 July 173,645,000 51,498,200
Granted during the year 136,000,000 167,250,000
Converted during the year (58,680,000} (27,668,200)
Expired during the year (10,090,000} (14,625,000)
Forfeited during the year (5,375,000} {2,810,000)
Performance rights at 30 June 235,500,000 173,645,000
2024 ANDAL REFORY (@) /9
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24. Share based payments (continued)

On 12 January 2024, the Company issued 58,500,000 unlisted performance rights to the employees
of FBR. These performance rights have no escrow period and are split in the following classes:

i. 29,250,000 Performance Rights Class A {still on issue)
Vesting conditions for 7,312,500 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has

completed the walls of a standard house in a residential construction market within a single
24 hour total elapsed period by 30 September 2024.

Vesting conditions for 7,312,500 Performance Rights of Class A; By 30 September 2024, the
Company has received binding purchase orders for its products and services with a
cumulative total value of $15million AUD, or otherwise will pro-rated proportional to the

cumulative total value of the binding purchase orders

Vesting conditions for 7,312,500 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has
completed the walls of five house structures in the United States, each taking less than one
day to build with FBR's robotic construction technology, by 30 September 2024. The
Performance rights to which this Performance Condition relates will be vest upon
completion of the fifth house structure in less than one day each, or otherwise will be pro-
rated proportional to the number of houses completed in less than one day if less than five
house structures have been completed by the end of the Performance Period.

Vesting conditions for 7,312,500 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has
completed the mechanical assembly of a US-spec Hadrian X robot by 30 September 2024,
This Performance Condition will be deemed to be satisfied as soon as the US-spec Hadrian X
is mechanically assembled.

All Class A Performance Rights have a milestone date on or before 30 September 2024 and
an expiry date of 31 luly 2025 If unconverted, Class A Performance Rights expire on the
expiry date.

iil. 29,250,000 Performance Rights Class B (still on issue)

Vesting condition for Class B; Performance review results based on successful completion of

employee individual performance goals.

All Class B Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 September 2024 and an expiry
date of 31 July 2025. If unconverted, Class B Performance Rights expire on the expiry date.

The fair value of these 58,500,000 performance rights granted during the year, assuming that
100% of the performance rights would vest, was 51,696,500 of which $1,103,048 was expensed
during the period.

On 28 May 2024, the Company issued 76,000,000 unlisted performance rights to the KMP and
employees of FBR. These performance rights have no escrow period and are split in the following

classes:

i. 38,000,000 Performance Rights Class A (still on issue)
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24.

Share based payments (continued)

Vesting conditions for Performance Rights Class A; The Company has received hinding
purchase orders for its products and services with a cumulative total value of 530 million
AUD.

All Class A Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 June 2025 and an expiry date of

31 July 2026. If unconverted, Class A Performance Rights expire on the expiry date.

38,000,000 Performance Rights Class B (still on issue)

Vesting condition for Class B; Performance review results based on successful completion of
employee individual performance goals.

All Class B Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 June 2025 and an expiry date of
31 July 2026. If unconverted, Class B Performance Rights expire on the expiry date.

The fair value of these 76,000,000 performance rights granted during the year, assuming that
100% of the performance rights will vest at 30 June 2025, was $1,748,000 of which $203,157
was expensed during the period.

On 28 May 2024, the Company issued 1,500,000 unlisted performance rights to the employees of
FBR. These performance rights have no escrow period and are split in the following classes:

750,000 Performance Rights Class A (still on issue)

Vesting conditions for 187,500 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has completed
the walls of a standard house in a residential construction market within a single 24 hour
total elapsed period by 30 September 2024,

Vesting conditions for 187,500 Performance Rights of Class A; By 30 September 2024, the
Company has received binding purchase orders for its products and services with a
cumulative total value of 515million AUD, or otherwise will pro-rated proportional to the
cumulative total value of the binding purchase orders

Vesting conditions for 187,500 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has completed
the walls of five house structures in the United States, each taking less than one day to build
with FBR's robotic construction technology, by 30 September 2024, The Performance rights
to which this Performance Condition relates will be vest upon completion of the fifth house
structure in less than one day each, or otherwise will be pro-rated proportional to the
number of houses completed in less than one day if less than five house structures have
been completed by the end of the Performance Period.

Vesting conditions for 187,500 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has completed
the mechanical assembly of a US-spec Hadrian X robot by 30 September 2024, This
Performance Condition will be deemed to be satisfied as soon as the US-spec Hadrian X is
mechanically assembled.

All Class A Performance Rights have a milestone date on or before 30 September 2024 and an
expiry date of 31 July 2025. If unconverted, Class A Performance Rights expire on the expiry
date.
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24, Share based payments (continued)

iil. 750,000 Performance Rights Class B (still on issue)

Vesting condition for Class B; Performance review results based on successful completion of
employee individual performance goals.

All Class B Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 September 2024 and an expiry
date of 31 July 2025. If unconverted, Class B Performance Rights expire on the expiry date.

The fair value of these 1,500,000 performance rights granted during the year, assuming that
100% of the performance rights would vest, was 534,500 of which $1,165 was expensed during
the period.

In the prior year on 25 July 2022, the Company issued 52,750,000 unlisted performance rights to the
employees of FBR. These performance rights have no escrow period and are split in the following

classes:

iii. 26,375,000 Performance Rights Class A {since either cancelled or forfeited)

Vesting conditions for 5,275,000 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has
completed mechanical assembly of the first Hadrian 110 before 30 September 2022.

Vesting conditions for 5,275,000 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has
completed the commissioning of the first Hadrian 110 and demonstrated a lay rate of 360
blocks per hour before 31 March 2023,

Vesting conditions for 5,275,000 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has
completed mechanical assembly of the second Hadrian 110 before 30 April 2023,
Vesting conditions for 5,275,000 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has

completed the commissioning of second Hadrian 110 and demonstrated a lay rate of 360
blocks per hour before 30 June 2023,

Vesting conditions for 5,275,000 Performance Rights of Class A; The Company has
demonstrated a Hadrian 110 lay rate of 500 blocks per hour before 30 June 2023.

All Class A Performance Rights have a milestone date on or before 30 June 2023 and an
expiry date of 31 July 2024. If unconverted, Class A Performance Rights expire on the expiry
date.

iv. 26,375,000 Performance Rights Class B (since either converted to ordinary shares or vested,
cancelled or forfeited)

Vesting condition for Class B; Performance review results based on successful completion of
employee individual performance goals.

All Class B Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 June 2023 and an expiry date of
31 July 2024. If unconverted, Class B Performance Rights expire on the expiry date.

The fair value of these 52,750,000 performance rights granted during the prior year, assuming
that 100% of the performance rights would vest, was $1,250,650 of which 100% was expensed.
during the prior period.
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24, Share based payments (continued)

In the prior year, on 22 December 2022, the Company issued 104,000,000 unlisted performance
rights to the KMP and employees of FBR. These performance rights have no escrow period and are
split in the following classes:

52,000,000 Performance Rights Class C (predominantly on issue)

Vesting conditions for Performance Rights Class C; The Company has received binding
purchase orders for its products and services with a cumulative total value of 530 million
AUD.

All Class C Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 June 2025 and an expiry date of
31 July 2026. If unconverted, Class C Performance Rights expire on the expiry date.

52,000,000 Performance Rights Class D (predominantly on issue)

Vesting condition for Class D; Performance review results based on successful completion of
employee individual performance goals.

All Class D Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 June 2025 and an expiry date of
31 July 2026. If unconverted, Class D Performance Rights expire on the expiry date.

The fair value of these 104,000,000 performance rights granted during the prior year, assuming
that 100% of the performance rights will vest at 30 June 2025, was 53,952,000 of which
51,548,642 was expensed during the period.

In the prior year on 22 December 2022, the Company issued 10,500,000 unlisted performance rights
to employees of FBR. These performance rights have no escrow period and are in the following

class:

W

10,500,000 Performance Rights Class B (since either converted to ordinary shares or vested,
cancelled or forfeited)

Vesting condition for Class B; Performance review results based on successful completion of

employee individual performance goals.

All Class B Performance Rights have a milestone date of 30 June 203 and an expiry date of 31
July 2024. If unconverted, Class B Performance Rights expire on the expiry date.

The fair value of these 10,500,000 performance rights granted during the prior year, assuming
that 100% of the performance rights will vest at 30 June 2023, was $399,000 of which 100% was
expensed during the prior period.
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25, Reserves

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

$ $
Share option reserve 3,232,890 2,266,019
Performance right reserve 3,621,285 3,536,801

6,854,175 5,802,820

Share option reserve comprises the expense of vested option share-based payments. The
reconciliation is set out as follows:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

$ $
Movement in option reserve
Opening at 1 July 2,266,019 1,497,925
Options converted to shares during the year - (343,740}
Options and loan funded shares issued 1,655,792 2,261,834
Options and loan funded shares expired - (1,150,000}
Options and loan funded shares lapsed or passed up (697,626}
Options and loan funded shares extended during the 8,705
period
Closing at 30 June 3,232,890 2,266,019

Performance rights reserve comprises the expense of vested performance right share-based

payments. The reconciliation is set out as follows:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

$ $

Movement in performance right reserve

Opening at 1 July 3,536,801 1,998,671
Performance rights converted to shares during the year (2,217,480) (1,079,060)
Performance rights issued during the year 3,018,515 3,013,090
Performance rights expired during the period (95,000} (317,622}
Performance rights forfeited during the period (94,925} (78,278)
Performance rights lapsed during the period (526,626) -
Closing at 30 June 3,621,285 3,536,801
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26. Earnings per share

Weighted average number of shares used in basic earnings

per share

Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect

of share-based payments

Weighted average number of shares used in diluted

earnings per share

30 June 2024

4,096,245,273

Both the basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated using the profit attributable to
shareholders of the legal parent company (FBR Ltd) as the numerator, i.e. no adjustments to profits
were necessary during the twelve (12) months period to 30 June 2024 and 30 June 2023.

The weighted average number of shares for the purposes of the calculation of diluted earnings per
share can be reconciled to the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
of basic earnings per share as follows:

30 June 2023

3,271,929,561

4,096,245,273

3,271,929,561

27. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities:

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the period after income tax expense

Adjustments for:

. depreciation, amortisation and impairment
. share-based payments

= Onerous contracts

. interest receivable

. grants income receivable

. R&D tax incentive income portion receivable

Net changes in working capital:

. change in trade and other receivables
. change in other assets
. change in trade and other payables

Net cash from operating activities

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ 5
(27,773,437)  (22,886,197)
6,341,537 5,192,691
4,683,011 5,274,924
377,062 1,226,443
(40,419) (42,484)
(73,200) (73,200)
(5,211,506)  (8,645,963)
4,854,119 3,897,479
(2,426,480) 165,640
(2,356,425) (941,383)
(21,625,738)  (16,832,050)
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28. Auditor remuneration

Audit services remuneration paid to Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd,

the auditor of the Group:

Audit and review of financial statements

Remuneration for audit and review of financial statements

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ $
137,000 154,000
137,000 154,000

There were no non-audit services provided during the period by the Auditor.

29. Related party transactions

The Group’s related parties include its Key Management Personnel.

Unless otherwise stated, none of the transactions incorporate special terms and conditions and no

guarantees were given or received. QOutstanding balances are usually settled in cash.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of FBR Ltd, and the entities

listed in the following table. Equity interest is directly held by FBR Ltd.

Country of incorporation

Fastbrick IP Pty Ltd
Fastbrick Engineering Pty Ltd
The Architectural Designer Pty Ltd

Fastbrick Operations Pty Ltd
Fastbrick Americas LLC

Fastbrick Americas Holdings LLC

Fastbrick Americas Engineering LLC

Key Management Personnel remuneration

Awustralia
Australia
Australia
Australia
UsA
usa
Usa

% Equity interest

June 2024

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

June 2023

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
M/A

Key Management Personnel of the Group are the members of FBR's Board of Directors and
members of the Executive Team. Key Management Personnel remuneration includes the following

expenses:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Long-term benefits

Share based payments — Short Term Incentive
Share based payments — Long Term Incentive
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Consolidated
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ S
2,183,567 2,035,199
212,766 171,353
111,052 85,239
1,134,270 1,637.463
988,322 1,106,265
4,629,977 5,035,523
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29. Related party transactions (continued)
Agreements with Directors or Related Parties

Director Loan Agreement

During prior periods the Company paid 5190,000 as an unsecured interest-bearing loan to Mark
Pivac in relation to tax payments relating to Performance Rights issued under the Company's
Performance Rights Plan. The amount (plus 5114,271 interest) remains outstanding at 30 June 2024.
The loan has a maturity date of 31 December 2024 and an interest rate at the higher of 4.52% per
annum and the highest rate of interest payable by the Company to any debt financier of the
Company at the relevant time.

Loan Funded Shares

During a prior year, on 24 December 2020, the Company issued 50,000,000 Loan Funded incentive
shares to the Executive Directors following approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 26 November 2020. The Loan Funded incentive shares were provided under a limited

recourse, interest free loan.

The incentive loan period in respect of 50,000,000 Loan Funded incentive shares expired on 24-
December 2023 and the shares were sold by the Company to a third party investor after balance
date. The executive directors did not receive any proceeds or benefit from the sale.

During a prior year, on 28 December 2022, the Company issued a total of 100,000,000 Loan Funded
incentive shares to the Executive Directors following approval by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting on 28 November 2022. The Loan Funded incentive shares were provided under a
limited recourse, interest free loan. For each Executive Director, half of the loan, which pertains to
25,000,000 shares is repayable within 12 months and half of the loan, which pertains to the other
25,000,000 shares is repayable within 36 months.

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 28 November 2023, the Company extended the term
by 12 months of a total of 50,000,000 of the fully paid ordinary shares issued as loan funded shares
to the two Executive Directors.

Guarantees

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related parties.

30. Contingent liabilities

At the reporting date the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2023: nil).
31. Financial instrument risk

A. Risk management objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Group’s financial
assets and liabilities are summarised by category in Note 15. The main types of risks are market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.
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31. Financial Instrument Risk (continued)

The Group's risk management is coordinated at its headquarters, in close cooperation with the
Board of Directors, and focuses on actively securing the Group’s short to medium-term cash flows by
minimising the exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to
generate lasting returns.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are
described below.

Market risk analysis

The Group is exposed to market risk, specifically interest rate risk, through the investment of excess
working capital into the short term money market.

Interest rate sensitivity

The consolidated entity’s only exposure to interest rate risk is in relation to deposits held. Deposits
are held with reputahle banking financial institutions.

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Weighted Weighted
average average
interest rate Balance interest rate Balance
% S % $
Cash at bank 1.37% 3,742,280 0.80% 12,397,405
Cash on deposit 3.51% 1,030,792 2.48% 1,005,000
4,773,072 13,402,405

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit and equity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates of +/- 0.5% (2023: +/- 0.5%). These changes are considered to be reasonably possible
based on observation of current market conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the
average market interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting
date that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant,

Profit for the year Equity
$ $ $ $
0.50% -0.50% 0.50% -0.50%
Cash at bank
30-Jun-24 18,711 (18,711) 18,711 (18,711)
30-Jun-23 61,987 (61,987) 61,987 (61,987)
Cash on deposit
30-lun-24 5,154 (5,154) 5,154 (5,154)
30-Jun-23 5,025 (5,025) 5,025 (5,025)
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31. Financial Instrument Risk (continued)

Credit risk analysis

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Group. The Group is
exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example by granting loans and receivables
to customers, placing deposits, investment in bonds etc. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the reporting date, as
summarised below:

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

$ $
Classes of financial assets
Carrying amounts:
» Cash and cash equivalents 3,742,280 13,402,405
¢ Trade and other receivables 392,087 420,382

4,134,367 13,822,787

The Group continuously monitors defaults of counterparties, identified either individually or by
Group and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. The Group's policy is to deal
only with creditworthy counterparties.

The Group's management considers that all of the above financial assets that are not impaired or

past due for each of the 30 June reporting dates under review are of good credit quality.

Trade and other receivables consist of Grants and Interest Receivable, Director Loans and Trade
Debtors. Based on historical information about customer default rates management consider the
credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Liquidity risk analysis

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group might be unable to meet its obligations. The Group manages
its liquidity needs by monitoring forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day-to-day business. The
data used for analysing these cash flows is consistent with that used in the contractual maturity
analysis below. Ligquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-
week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 180
day and a 360 day lookout period are identified monthly. Net cash requirements are compared to
available borrowing facilities in order to determine headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows

that available borrowing facilities are expected to be sufficient over the lookout period.

The Group's objective is to maintain cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity
requirements for 30 day periods at a minimum. This objective was met for the reporting periods.
Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to sell long-term financial assets.
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31. Financial Instrument Risk (continued)

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity
risk, in particular its cash resources and trade receivables. The Group's existing cash resources and
trade receivables (see Statement of Financial Position) exceed the current cash outflow
requirements. Cash flows from other receivables are all due within six (6] months.

As at 30 June 2024, the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities have contractual maturities
(including interest payments where applicable) as summarised below:

Current Non-current
Within 6
months 6 - 12 months 1-5years 5+ years
$ $ $ $

30 June 2024
Trade and other payables 3,483,268 - - -
Lease liabilities 666,771 666,771 311,600 -
gl?ﬁ::' mortgage equipment loan 102,990 102,990 291,805
Construction loan facility 534,506 -
Hadrian lease finance facility 350,998 1,153,992 -
::ZE: ;:IEEE:' development tax 4346418 i i
Total 9,484,951 1,923,753 603,405

This compares to the maturity of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities in the previous
reporting periods as follows:

Current Non-current
Within 6
months 6 - 12 months 1-5years 5+ years
$ $ $ S

30 June 2023
Trade and other payables 2,953,631 -
Lease liabilities 750,725 750,725 893,590
gf:ﬁ::' mortgage equipment loan 102,990 102,990 497,785
Construction loan facility 44,643 598,531 -
Hadrian lease finance facility 330,215 330,215 1,470,358
II:-:EEfsue: ;igj-. development tax 4102.423 i
Total 8,284,627 1,782,461 2,861,733

The above amounts reflect the contractual undiscounted cash flows, which may differ to the
carrying values of the liabilities at the reporting date.
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32. Fair value measurement

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Directors have performed a review of the financial assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2024 and
have concluded that the fair value of those assets and liabilities are not materially different to book

values. The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments were:

# Cash - The carrying amount is fair value due to the liquid nature of these assets.

« Receivables/payables - Due to the short-term nature of these financial rights and
obligations, their carrying values are estimated to represent their fair values and equals the

amount to be settled by the contracting party.

33. Restatement of prior year balances

During the year ended 30 June 2024, the Group identified an error in the accounting treatment

prior periods as follows:

| use only

a

of the R&D tax incentive refund in prior reporting periods. The refund was not being matched
to the expenditure incurred to generate the refund which was a non-compliance with the
accounting standards. The error resulted in a material overstatement of capitalised
development costs and property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 and a
corresponding overstatement of retained earnings and profit after tax for these periods. The
error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the

Statement of Financial 30 June 2023 Increase) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022 Increase/ 1 July 2022
Position as reported (decrease) {restated) as reported {decrease) {Restated)
Capitalised development 44,544 728 (569,486) 43,975,242 46,394,525 1667,272) 45,727,253
U) costs
S Property plant & 15,092,258 {4,155,723) 10,936,535 4,961,409 {291,571} 4,669,838
G) equipment
Quet Assets 71,508,596 {4,725,209) 66,783,387 58,265,402 (958,842) 57,306,560
Retained Earnings (83,139,478) (4,725,208) (87,864,687) (61,799,181) (958,843} (62,758,204}
I I Total Equity 71,508,596 {4,725,209) 66,783,387 58,265,402 (958,842) 57,306,559
30 lune 2023 Increase) 30 June 2023
Statement of Financial Performance as reported (decrease) (restated)
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Amortisation of development costs (3,163,551) 245,526 (2,918,025)
R&D tax incentive 8,645,963 (4,011,892) 4,634,071
Total comprehensive loss for the period (22,886,197) (3,766,365) (26,652,562)
Basic loss per share in cents per share 0.70 0.11 0.81
Diluted loss per share in cents per share 0.70 0.11 0.81
FBRLIMITED
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34. Events after the reporting date

15 July 2024 — The Company issued 12,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares upon exercise of unquoted
employee options that vested in accordance with the Company’s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

17 July 2024 - 50,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares previously issued as loan funded shares were
sold to an institutional investor at a price of $0.041 per share to raise a total of $2.05 million for FBR.
The incentive loan period in respect of which the loan-funded shares were issued expired during the
year. Full proceeds of the sale of these shares went directly and solely to FBR in part repayment of
the outstanding loans. The balance of the outstanding non cash loans was forgiven under the terms
of the loan funded share incentive plan.

22 luly 2024 — The Company issued 8,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares upon exercise of unquoted
employee options that vested in accordance with the Company’'s Employee Securities Incentive Plan.

7 August 2024 - The Company sold a block of residential land (classified as Inventory) for 436,000
and applied the proceeds, net of taxes and selling costs, to repayment of the Construction Loan
Facility. The balance of the Construction Loan Facility was repaid in September.

9 August 2024 - The Company issued 328,947,368 fully paid ordinary shares to new and existing
institutional, sophisticated and strategic investors at an issue price of $0.038 per share to raise a
total of $12.5 million before costs.

14 August 2024 — The Company received confirmation from CRH Ventures that the first next-
generation Hadrian X® has successfully met their requirements and has completed 5Site Acceptance
Testing at the Fort Myers facility in Florida, United States. An independent structural engineer
provided confirmation that the walls of the test build were consistent with the design and met
applicable building standards. Completion of Site Acceptance Testing triggered a US5$600,000
payment by CRH Ventures to FBR.

10 September 2024 — The Company completed the walls of the first home in its US Demonstration
program with CRH Ventures, with the walls certified as compliant with the design and building code
in Florida.

Other than the events described above there are no other adjusting or significant non-adjusting
events that have occurred between reporting date and the date of authorisation.
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35. Parent entity information

The following information relates to the legal parent entity of the Company, being FBR Ltd (‘the
Parent Entity’). The information presented has been prepared using consistent accounting policies as
presented in Note 5.

For personal use only

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
$ $

Statement of financial position
Current assets 2,362,843 11,202,842
Mon-current assets 30,109 34,410
Total assets 2,392,951 11,237,252
Current liabilities 4,640,646 4,453,646
Mon-current liabilities - -
Total liabilities 4,640,646 4,453,646
Net assets (2,247,695) 6,783,606
Issued capital 190,998,719 171,432,118
Reserves 6,854,175 5,802,820
Retained losses (200,100,588) (170,451,332)
Total equity (2,247,695) 6,783,606
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:
Loss for the year 29,649,257 33,763,958
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 29,649,257 33,763,958

The Parent Entity has no capital commitments (2023: Nil).

The Parent Entity has not entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee nor are there any contingent
liabilities at the year end.
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Consolidated Entity Disclosure Statement

Basis of preparation: The consolidated entity disclosure statement (CEDS) has been prepared in
accordance with subsection 295(3A)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001. The entities listed in the
statement are FBR Ltd and all the entities it controls in accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements.

For personal use only

Trustee, % of Country Australian Foreign tax
partner or share of resident or foreign jurisdiction(s)
Name of Type of participant  capital incorpor resident (for tax of foreign
Entity Entity inlv held ation purposes) residents
FEBR Lid Company nfa nfa Australia Australian nfa
Fastbrick C /. 100% Australi Australi /
np.nr.—man; P[? Ltd CIITIFIF.II'I'.' nta ustralia ustralian ny/a
Fastbrick
Engineering Pty Company nfa 100% Auwstralia Australian nfa
Ltd
Fasthrick IF Pty Ltd Company nfa 100% Australia Australian nfa
The Architectural
E_ rehitectura Company nja 100% Australia Australian nfa

Designer Pty Ltd
Fastbrick Americas

astinck Americas e nfa 100% USA Foreign UsA
LLC
Fastbrick Americas 1
Operations LLC te n/a 100% UsA Foreign nfa
Fastbrick Al i

ASLACLAMENEAs e nfa 100% USA Foreign nfal

Engineering LLC

' This entity is treated as a disregarded entity for US federal tax purposes and therefore cannot be characterised as tax resident in the US in its own
right. However, it is 100% owned by Fastbrick Americas LLC, who reports the income and deductions of the LLC and pays tax on that income in its US

federal returns.
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Directors’ Declaration
1  Inthe opinion of the Directors of FBR Ltd:

a. The consolidated financial statements and notes of the Group are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

i.  Giving a true and fair view of its financial position as at 30 June 2024, and of its
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

ii. Complying with Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

b. There are reasonable grounds to believe that FBR Ltd will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

2  The consolidated entity disclosure statement is true and correct.

3 The Directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations
Act 2001 from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer equivalent for the financial
year ended 30 June 2024.

3 Note 2 confirms that the consolidated financial statements also comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors

Michael Pivac
MAMNAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER - GLOBAL

Dated the 23™ day of September 2024
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o Grant Thornton

Grant Thomton Audit Pty Ltd
Level 43 Central Park

152-158 5t Georges Terrace
Perth WA 8000

PO Box 7757

Cloisters Square

Perth WA 8850

T +61 & 9480 2000

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of FER Ltd

Report on the audit of the financial report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of FER Ltd (the Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which
comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including material accounting policy information, the consolidated entity disclosure statement
and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

a giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial posttion as at 30 June 2024 and of its performance
far the year ended on that date; and

b complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporafions Regulations 2004,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibiliies under those
standards are further described in the Audifor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements
of the Corporations Act 2007 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence
Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfiled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 3 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
27,773,437 during the year ended 30 June 2024, and as of that date, the Group's net cash outflows from
operating and investing activities totalled $25,359,922. As stated in Note 3, these events or conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in Mote 3, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Cur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

www.grantthornton.com.au
ACN-130 913 594

Grant Thornton Awdit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 369 ACN 127 556 359,
‘Grant Thomton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thomton member fimis provide assurance, tax and advisory senices o their clients andior
refiars to one or more mermber firms, as the context requires. Grant Thomton Australia Limited is a member firm of Grant Thornton Intemational Lid (GTIL)L
GTIL and the member firms are not a workiwade partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Senices are delivered by the member
firms. GTIL does not provide services fo chents. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one anather and are not liable for one
another's acts or omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the term 'Grant Thomton” may refer to Grant Thomton Australia Limited ABM 41 127
556 389 ACKH 127 556 389 and its Ausiralian subsidianes and related entities. Lizbilly limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards
Legislation.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Materal uncertainty related to going concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Research and Development Incentive (Note 13)

LUnder the research and development (R&D) tax
incentive scheme, the Group receives a 43.5%
refundable tax offset of eligible expenditure if its
turnover is less than 320 million per annum,
provided it is not controlled by income tax exempt
enlities.

A RE&D plan is filed with Ausindustry in the
C following financial year and based on this filing, the
Group receives the incentive in cash. Management
perfermed a detailed review of the Group's total
q) RE&D expenditure to estimate the refundable tax
offset receivable under the R&D tax incentive
legislation. As at 30 June 2024, a receivable of
: $5.,924 855 has been recorded.

This area is a key audil matler due to the size of
the receivable and the degree of judgement and
interpretation of the R&D tax legislation required
by management lo assess the eligibility of the

O RE&D expenditure under the scheme.

ers

Cur procedures included, amongst others;

obtaining a detailed understanding of the underlying
processes for claiming the R&D rebate through
discussion with relevant individuals across the
organisation and review of relevant documentation;

assessing the work performed by management’s expert,
including the expert's competence, capabilitly and
objectivity;

engaging our internal auditor's expert to assistin
reviewing the reasonableness of the eligibility of
expendiiure and the calculation;

testing a sample of R&D expenditure within the
computation to underlying supporting documentation;

comparing the eligible expenditure used in the receivable
calculation to the expenditure recorded in the general
ledger,

inspecting copies of relevant correspondence with
Ausindustry and the ATO related historic claims; and

assessing the appropriateness of financial statement
disclosures.

Information other than the financial report and auditor's report thereon

LS.
o
LL

auditor's report thereon.

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Group's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2024, but does not include the financial report and our

Cwur opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of;

a a) the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and the Corporations Act 2001 (other than the consclidated entity disclosure statement); and

b b) the consclidated entity disclosure statement that is true and correct in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001, and

Grant Thorrdon Audd Pty Lid
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for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of:

i the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; and

il the consolidated entity disclosure statement that is true and correct and is free of misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: http:./’maww.auasb.gov.aw/auditors responsibilities/ar1 2020.pdf. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

Report on the remuneration report

Opinion on the remuneration report
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 14 to 26 of the Directors’ report for the year
ended 30 June 2024,

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of FBR Lid, for the year ended 30 June 2024 complies with section
300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report
in accordance with section 3004 of the Corporations Act 2001, Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

%mn# /\’hufnl—an

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

L A Stella
Partner — Audit & Assurance

Perth, 23 September 2024

Grart Tharmion Audit Pty Lid
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Additional
ASX InTformation

Shareholders ranges

Additional information required by the Australian Securities Exchange Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in this Annual
Report. This information is based on share registry data as at 7 October 2024.

y
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Voting Rights

All ordinary shares carry one vote per share
withoutrestriction.Optionsforordinaryshares
do not carry any voting rights. Performance

Range Total Holders
1-1,000 827
1,001 - 5,000 1,388
5,001 - 10,000 1,695
10,001 - 100,000 5,851
100,001 Over 2,740

Rounding
Total 12,501
Substantial Shareholders

Units
122,961
4,811,100
13,705,919

230,406,252
4,575,351,113

4,824,397,345

Rights for ordinary shares do not carry any Rank Name Units
voting rights. 1 HORSLEY PARK HOLDINGS PTY LTD 731,677,967
2 M&G INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED 675,518,427
3 FIL LIMITED 477,615,337
4 MARK JOSEPH PIVAC 333,205,167

* based on substantial shareholding notices submitted to the ASX.

Top 20 Shareholders
As at 7 October 2024, the 20 largest shareholders held 52.00% of fully paid quoted Ordinary Shares on issue.

HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED

HORSLEY PARK HOLDINGS PTY LTD

MARK JOSEPH PIVAC

HORSLEY PARK HOLDINGS PTY LTD

CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED

MR MICHAEL JOHN PIVAC

BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD ACF CLEARSTREAM

BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <IB AU NOMS RETAILCLIENT DRP>

BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <DRP>

J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED

MR DOUG NISHIJO STRACHAN + MRS MAHO STRACHAN

BNP PARIBAS NOMS (NZ) LTD

JANITHAN HOLDINGS PTY LTD <J LAWE DAVIES FAMILY A/C>

MR DRAZEN MACUKAT + MRS LILJANA MACUKAT <MACUKAT SUPER FUND A/C>
HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED - A/C 2

TALENTO HOLDINGS PTY LTD

MR ANTHONY MARK SAIA + MRS CARMEN SAIA <SAIA FAMILY SUPER FUND A/C>
HUATING PTY LTD <COLLETT INVESTMENT A/C>

WARBONT NOMINEES PTY LTD <UNPAID ENTREPQOT A/C>

LEHIGH HOLDINGS PTY LTD <L & M SUPER FUND A/C>

Totals: Top 20 holders of ORDINARY FULLY PAID SHARES (Total)

Total Remaining Holders Balance

% Units
0.00

0.10

0.28

478
94.84
0.00
100.00

As at 7 October 2024, Substantial Shareholders in FBR as notified through
relevant ASX announcements were as follows:

% Units
15.17%
14.00%

9.90%
6.91%

Shares % of Shares

1,116,048,861
422,987,728
333,205,167
308,689,239
144,090,448
127,589,371
101,660,154
86,655,030
28,249,933
24,722,727
19,463,000
18,706,816
16,525,625
15,842,841
15,680,624
14,385,965
13,500,000
13,300,000
12,992,353
12,230,000
2,846,525,882
1,977,871,463
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2313
8.77
691
6.40
2.99
2.64
2M
1.80
0.59
0.51
0.40
0.39
0.34
0.33
0.33
0.30
0.28
0.28
0.27
0.25

59.00

41.00
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